11

12

13

14

15

i6

18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Meeting held between the Public Protector South Africa & Dr Chris Stals

B September 2016

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

AdvT Madonsela :

DrJj De Jager

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

[Opening of Meeting // 8 September 2016]

Perhaps we can start. Thank you, Doctor Stals.

Pleasure.
Advocate De jager..
Thank you.

. and Mister Moraitis, for meeting with us this morning. We
sincerely, sincerely appreciate making the effort to meet with us.
Doctor Stals, we are aware that you have long retired and therefore
we have taken a bite info your private time on a matter ...
And golf.
.. that happened many 3.rears ago and we appreciate you graciously
availing yourself to assist us on this matter. We also are grateful to

the Reserve Bank for interacting with you and assisting you in

" preparations for this meeting. I received communication from the

Reserve Bank yesterday, which s a follow-up to several interactions

] have had with the Reserve Bank, and basically there are just some

questions that again Adv De Jager has raised. 1thought therefore in
commencing this meeting t‘oday I have to start égain and explain
what are we doing, why are we doing this and what outcome is
envisaged from this process, but before doing s; if you could just
kindly, all of you indulge us. We are recording these, as we record all
of our conversations. You are enti’de‘d to the record. If you want it
immediately, a !disk can be made for you today and if you want it
tranécribed it can be done as soon as possible, although our

resources are limited when it comes to transcription, but when
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Mr B Dhlamini

Adv L Tshiwalule :

Dr]] de Jager
Dr C Stals

Mr C Moraitis

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

requested we do it. Because of that then we all have to indicate what

our names are and designations. So I will start just for the record,
I'm Adv Thuli Madonsela, the Public Protector.

My name is Bonginkosi Dhlamini, I'm the Chief of Staff, Public

Protector South Africa.

My name is Adv Tshiwalule, Investigator in thlisrmatter,

DrJohan de Jager, General Counsel, South African Reserve Bank.

I'm Chris Stals, unemployed pensioner.

Chris Moraitis from Werksmans Attorneys, I'm the Legal Adviser to
the South African Reserve Bank. | |
Thank you, Sirs. Doctor Stals, you remind me, when we interviewed
Mr Mboweni, he emphasised right at the beginning of the discussion

that he is an unemployed pensioner who had been dragged to this

meeting and he was concerned about the time he was going to spend

here without being paid for the time and also concerned about the
fact that somebodj had to pay for the transport he had used to come
here, so [ do understand and we apologise for i;‘itruding into your
time.

I'm a little bit easier, | wasn’t dragged here. | came with pleasure at
your invitation and secondly you don’t have Ito pé’y me.

Thank you, Sir. Right, we are here fo’ look into alleged failure by the
South African Governmeht, the -Nationél Treasury and the South
African Reserve Bank to implement recommendations of the CIEX
Report regarding recovery of funds that were paid by the Reserve

Bank on behalf of the South African Government to Bankorp in the
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1980's. Qur focus is not so much on what happened in the 1980’s.
Our focus is the non-recovery when that CIEX Report was received.

We have information that shows that a first copy of the report was

received in 1998 and a final report was delivered in 1999, but a final’

conversation between Government and Mr Mike Oatley was around

2003 when he was asking what exactly is the way forward, after

“having had the benefit of the commissions that had been given a

mandate by Government to look into the same matter. From our side
we thank you sincerely for honouring the invitation to meet us today,
Doctor Stals. From your side we are not going to be asking too many
questions around the fecovery. We will be asking questions
regarding the background to the CIEX Repo'rt. From what we know
at the moment it deals with what are referred to as “lifeboats” given
to several banks, which _evenfually came togeﬁher as Bankorﬁ over a
period of time up to 1985. That is what we are looking at. Ithink we
have a timeline map here, which we are going to give you in terms of
what appears to have happened based on the evidence we have. We
are going to just ask you to assist us about two. deals. I think the
focus of our conversation today is going to be. on twc; deals, the

original deal that led to the money being given or the bonds being

- given, the bonds being given to Bankorp. That is the first deal we are

interested in. Not all of the deals, because we understand there were
several lifeboats. We are interested in the last lifeboat, the one with
the 1% interest. Then the second focus of our conversation today

will only be around the acquisition by Absa, what was the deal? We
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héve requested. Treasury, we have requested Absa and the Reserve
Bank to kindly give us copies of the two deals. To date we have not
been given copies of the two deals. We are referred to the I_Z_)avis
Report, but the Davis Report doesn’t write reports like us, where you
say, “My conclusions on this are 1, 2, 3 based on this document that is
dated whatnot, where it was stated” .. and then you state a
paragraph, because we are just looking for paragraphs that said, “We
agree to do this” or “We agree to do that”. None of the reports that
Government keépﬁ relying on is telling us exactly what was the first
deal, with who ... well, not the first deal, what was that deal with
Bankorp, what was the nature of the agreement with Bankorp
regarding payment, the amounts to be paid, the timeline for payment
and whether or rot there was payme_nt during that period?- The
second p;irt would be when Absa then came to the party, you will
note that the Davis Report says Absa paid vah.le for money, but that

is nof Helpful for us. What we want to know is, what was the deal

" between Absa, Government and the Reserve Bank or Absa- and

Government, or Absa, Bankorp and whoever. If they had just given
us copies of those deals Sir, we really wouldn’t have calie.d you to this
meeting. We would have read those deals and ééid this is what was
agreed and did the conduct that ensued after those deals comply
with whaf was agreed, because all we are looking at is what was
agreed and did the }pa.rties act according to what was agreed? Then
the Davis Report and all of the others have looked at the legality of

the agreement itself. We are not concerned about the legality of the
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Dr C Stals

DrJ] de Jager

AdvT Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

agreement, because we are saying whether the money was stolen or

whether the money was loaned or gifted ... whether the money was

- stolen or the money was .. maybe “theft” is not a good langnage.

Whether the money was improperly given over or whether the’

money was legally loaned, it still would have been payable and then
our iﬁterest would be thren what was the agreement regarding
payment and was that agreement changed? If it was changed, which
clause and what agreement changed the nature of the agreement,
which takes us to where we are then, but before we hand over to you
Sir, I just wanted to deal very quickly with some of the questions that
have been raised by the Reserve Bank in the letter that has been

graciously forwarded to me by Dr De Jager yesterday. It is not the

. first time these issues are raised. The first one is the question of the

Reserve Bank, do we have jurisdiction over the Reserve Bank?

Do we have?

Jurisdiction.

Do we have .. does the Public Protector South Africa have
jurisdiction over the Reserve Bank? That is the question that has
been raised by the Reserve Bank. | |

Isee.

The answer for me is yes and then this is not the first time we are
investigating the Reserve Bamk. This is just one of many
investigations we have done with the Reserve Bank and all of those
requests by the Reserve Bank to clarify our mandate, we have

clarified our mandate. From where we are sitting, the Reserve Bank
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A:?

Mr C Moraitis

Adv T Madonsela :

Mr C Moraitis

Adv T Madonsela :

Mr C Moraitis

Adv T Madonsela :

is c_:learly an institution exercising a public power.

IfI..

Mister Moraitis, I haven’t explained the rules then and I don’t want
us to start oﬁ awrong footing. I am going to speak and then ﬁnish. .
Okay.

When I have finished with my welcoming remarks - I think we have
given you the program - we will then have maybe the remarks from
the Reserve Bank.

Perfect. Thank you, I apologise.

The second part that I want to explain in terms of the rules is that
ordinarily as the Public Protector Act says you have access to legal
assistance, we prefgr that then we hear you, because these- are
inquisitorial proceedings. We prefer to hear your views, to hea‘r ybu
as a person with your mouth and that obviously your legal assistance
involves people sitting next to you, and every time you say

something that they think needs clarification, to be clarified, if they

want to withdraw a statement, they can ask that it be withdrawn. If |

there is a technical matter that can only be explained by the Lawyers,
the Lawyers also have an opportunity first to express-tﬁat technical
matter. It is a fairly informal arrangement, as é,r‘ou can see yourself,
but we do try to just méke sure that we don’t interrupt each other,

we let one person speak, because also from a recording point of view

when there is an overlay of voices, they have indicated that they then

don’t know who said what. So if we speak one person at a time they

will capture our voices or at least those voices that are more distinct
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than mine, right. Okay, the issue of jurisdiction, from our side we
have explained this, consistently to the Reserve Bank, that the

Reserve Bank, yes, is a statutory body and we do understand that the

Reserve Bank ... the Government is one of the shareholders and there*

are other private shareholders there. We understand that the
Reserve Bank .. the important part though is that the South African
Reserve Bank is tasked with a responsibility of overseeing,
regulating and supervising banks and the financial system as a
whole. Therein lies the part about the Reserve Bank, that it is notan
entity, The Reserve Bank doesnt occupy space similar to Absa,
similar to Barclays Bank or whoever. The Reserve Bank is an entity

to whom the Government of the Republic of South Africa has

.delegated some of its own regulatory authority and decided the

Reserve Bank will do that. So it operates as a Central Bank of this
country or the regulator and a bank, and to that effect it does fall
under-our jurisdiction. Iin the actual report Doctor Stals, will clarify
exactly the statutory foundations of our powers over the Reserve
Bank, but that is about investigating the acts and condpct of the
Reserve Bank. But when it comes to -asking qﬁestions,l the Public

Protector has the power under Section 7 of the Public Protector Act

- to ask questions-from any person in the Republic and to request any

document from any person in the Republic. Even the Financial
Intelligence Centre is not exempted from assisting us with
(indistinct). So we for example are grateful that you came, because

you would say to us you are no longer the Governor and you haven't
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been the Governor for two decades, why have we dragged you here?
The part now is not coming as an actor, you are coming as somebody
who can assist us to piece together this puzzle and get a sense of
what happened. From the law we have a sense from our side what
should have happened. What we are looking for is what happened
and if what happened is in line with what should have happened or isl
it at odds with what should have happened, and if so, what do'we do
two decades - or more than two decades - down the line, but again
W.hE.lt happened for us at this stage is what happened under the
Government of the Republic of South Africa from 1997, but people-
then are asking why are we asking old questions? To understand

what happened in 1997 we have to understand the history of this

" matter and for us to adjudicate the correctness or propriety of the

decisions taken or not t_aken post 1997, we have to have information
about what kind of deal were they confronted with and whether the
way they handled it was rational, reasonable and generally proper in
the circumstances? So that is the first part about our jurisdiction
over the Reserve Bank. The second part is the whole question of

when you deal with the Reserve Bank there may be a systemic

impact. 1 have heard that word from day one, having my first |

interview with Judge Bertelsmann, who had to educate me about the
run on the rand, systemic imp-act, etcetera and he takes a totally
different view from the one that is taken by the Reserve Bank, so but
what does it say then for me, is [ can’t go with the Reserve Bank's

view about systemic impact, I can’t go with Judge Bertelsmann’s view

3
-
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Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Mr C Moraitis

Dr]] de Jager

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

on the systemic. He is just one of those. Even Judge Heath, who had
ipitially worried about the systemic impact, he has now come back
and said he thinks the systemic imﬁact card was overplayéd, if you
look back now. So I'm just saying again you must bear with me that-
as an adjudicator - and the two Lawyers will conﬁrfﬁ thls - 1s “’;h.at.
you are not an expert in any of these areas. The value you bring to
this is the ability to listen to all .of the .experts and if you are not
agreed with these experts, you go fo others, other experts. In this
matter, the CIEX Report, you will recall that one of the people who
were Investigators in the CIEX Report is a former Governor of the UK
Reserve Bank. He also disagrees with the systemic impact.

Who is that? |

I have been asked ... Mr McMahon. [ have been asked that actually ...
Yeah, | have heard oflhin}. - | |
He was nevera Governor, not a Governor of the Reserve Bank.

He was the Deputy, Sir.

He was a Deputy, yes.

Okay.

Frustrated, because the Government did notr appoiﬁt him and
(indistinct) a vendetta against Central Banks.

Okay. Doctor Stals, I will just let that go, but I was just saying ... the
point I was making just for fhe record is, we take no view about
whether there was going to be a systemic impact or not at this stage.
We are just listening to every partand fny job is to weigh all of these

ideas, and then apply my mind in terms of what of those arguments
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are more rational, are more persuasive and more reasonable to any
human being who is sitting in the position where I'm sitting. Then
there is a second part, the point that has been raised about that even
this investigation itself could lead to a systemic impact. Dector De
Jager, I read that Sir and I understand. 1 would just say for me,
whether we leave this matter or we deal with it conclusively, there
are consequences and the fact that it has been dragged forever with
people having fheir own interpretation of what happened, and
people creating their own storylines ... as we are sittiﬁg there is Black
First Land First, because Mr Michael Oatley has been trying to find
anybody in South Africa who can listen to his cause and who can also
be persuadéd to look at the possibility of getting a fair value for their
contributioﬁ to recovering of the money, because he is still hpping
that he will recover the percentage of whatever he believes is
recoverable. So me dropping this matter is not going to stop a public
debate  on it and a continuous debate on it about there was
wrongdoing. Even the amounts involved it gets different in the
public out there. 1 think the running figure in the public is, we are
talking about 26 billion. The figure that we are dealiﬁg with is far
less than 26 billion. However, there is somethihg Sir, where you say
that conjecture and speculation in the market about the nature of the
financial assistance provided to Bankorp by the South African
Reserve Bank and its effect on Absa was therefore not conducive to
stability in the banking sector. My approach would be, I don't think

any of the investigations that have been done were supposed to be
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1 about conjecture and speculation, and we have to be careful about
2 which of the reports are we séying is more about conjecture and
3 | speculation. There has been the Davis Report, the Heath Report and
4 the CIEX t_iocument, but from our side We don’t plan to specﬁlate. If-
5 we wanted to speculaté we would have. sat 1n our httlecornerand
6 _ arrived at conclusions. We have béen trying to find the truth the best
7 way we know how énd we have tried to look under any stone where
8 | somebody said the truth might be hiding there, and that is why Sir,

we have asked you to be here. The Davis Report made some findings,

i0 but you will understand that the Davis Report is a repoft of ... Judge
11 Davis is an excellent Judge and one of my former mentors, but my
12 process heré is different from the Davis Report, because the Davis
3y - ‘Report was an internal investigation commissioned by the Reserve
14 Bank. So this matter has now come to the ultimate administraﬁve
15 _ over31ght body in South Africa, which is the Public Protector South
16 Afnca- We cannot say just because Judge Dav15, there was an

internal investigation, we can’t investigate. In fact a lot of the things

18 7 that we dé in Government, sometimes there would have been an
19 intel;nal forensic report that arrived at some ﬁéures. Nkandlﬁa for
20 example there were two internal reports, there was the Ministerial
21 | Task Team Report that said there was no-wrongdoing and there was
22 the SIU Report that said something else, but much as we were told,
23 “Don’t touch it because there has been internal investigations”, we
24 said we will consider those internal investigations, we will apply our
25 | mind to them, but we are a different body with a different mandate

4
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Adv L Tshiwalule :

AdvT Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madcnsela :

and those internal processes aren’t a bar to us, but of course they are
useful materials too and agéin I have interviewed Judge Davis. [ will
not indicate what he has said to me, but I have interviewed him right
at the beginning of this process, I think it was 20137

2013, yes.

Yes. You then quote Sir, that I had said at that stage I didn’t want to
go for a wild goose chase. That is true. 1 initially refused to
investigate this matter and then Adv Paul Hoffman said there is low
lying fruit, because. ...

Advocate who?

Adv Paul Hoffman. The complainant...

Hoffman? |

The complainant in this matter is Adv Paul Hoffman, although other
people have now jumped on the bus and make more noise than him,
but from his side he said the money was wrongly given, but that is
not the issue. The issue is the money'was loaned and loans are
recoverable, and he said that Absa had made a provision to pay for
this‘ loan, and all we needed to do then was to ask Absa to reopen
their vaults and find that money that they had ﬁrovided for. Iwon't
indicate where are welin terms of finding out whether the money

was provided for or not, but when we entered of course it was here is

money, Government money that was wrongly given away. Whether-| .

wrongly or rightly given away, but this is Government money that
was given away, it was recoverable. When the opportunity

presented itself for it to be recovered, Government did not recover
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13

Mr B Dhlamini

Adv T Madonsela :

and the reasons Government gave or was .. or the information
circulating that indicates why Government chose not to recover is
not convincing, and then I was asked then to investigate. Indeed
firstly took me to these key people. Judge Bertelsmann was on‘e:of
those people who [ interviewed at the beginning a;nd he told me the
money is recoverable. So by the timle then I made a decision to
proceed with the investigation, which is what we do after a
preliminary, it is when we have credible information or sources that
suggest that the matter is worth pursuing, but whether the money is

recoverable or not is not dependent on what Judge Bertelsmann told

me or Judge Heath told me, or the former Head of NIA, Mr ...

Billy?

Billy Masetlha. What all of those people have said .. we have their
statements in terms of what their view is, but itr is not their views.
Ultimately I have to make a decision that I think takes into account
all rules, rules of commerce, your systemic impact and general
fairness, rationality, reasonableness and Iawfulness, [ will have to
take all of those. So I haven’'t made any decision, b'ut I'm just

explaining why I move from a preliminary to a full investigation. 1

~ didn’t just do so foolhardy. [did do this preliminary and I did consult

these people who are as competent as Judge Davis. He himself ]
interviewed him and he didn't pose an impediment to me proceeding
forward. In the report I will indicate what his view was about some

of the difficulties and how [ could explore ways to overcome them.
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oo

14

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

You then have a complaint saying about the fact that we kept
postponing meetings. I sincerely apologise. It was not my intention
to do so. It was just scheduling errors and emergencies emerging,
and I will again maybe extend another written apology to former
Governor Gill Marcus. I had written to her on each postponement to
apologise, but I do a;ﬂologise. We finally did meet in September, on
the 2nd of September 2013, as you have indicated. For us .. 1
explained again that I'm not going to the old enquiry, but I do need
that backgroﬁnd.

| understand that.

It is not for me at this stage to judge whether it was a gift, it was a
loan or it was stolen r.noney, buf I just have ... - mean my concern is,
was the money recoverable, whafever- 'paékage it was and if i1_: Wwas
recoverable | have to find that informatipn from the two deals, the
deal that led to the money being given away and secondly, the deal

that Ted to the Absa takeover or the Absa decision. A lot has been

said about the Bounty Hunter, Government has also complained why |

are we investigating, because there was a Bounty Hunter involved?
Qur approach has always been we dont care whé complains.
Sometimes the person who tells you that somebédy was murdered is
the guy who had been promised part of the money and they don't get
part of the money and then they tell us about who murdered who. So
we are not going to not follow up on the murder because the person
who is giving us the information has ill motives, or wants some of the

money. Like in some of those murder cases in fact people are told
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1 that “You will get this money if you tell us who murdered?”. So we do

2 | take that into account. Ithink what for us is important in that case, it

3 is not about who wrote this report. It is the quality of the
4| informatonandthereliabiity of the report

5 | DrCStals .~ Is that the Davis Report?

6 | Adv T Madonsela : No, thatis the CIEX one.
7 | Mr C Moraitis . CIEX, CIEX, Doctor Stals.

g | AdvT Madonsela : We will assess the report in terms of the quality of this report, in

05 9 o terms of the reliability of the information it provides and the
10 | concreteness of the information it provides, but that has nothing to

11 : - do with who wrote it. The team itself was a competent team, which

2 includes Mr McMahon, former Deputy Governor.and it also includes
13 | o somebody who is now .a Judge. So they are standing their ground,
14 but we do not look at who, we look at what and each statement Iﬁust
15 d_éfend itself, because of its raﬁonality and reasonableness. Just

16 | lastly again we thank you for being here and we assure you that we

have made no decision about what happened, whether it was right or

18 wrong. We are lqoking for answers. What we do firmly believe
19 : though is that leaving this matter without a’writtén rep'oft will do no
20 - justice to the people affected, but it will also do no justice to the
21 - South African economy, beca.use this matter will remain a wound to
22 the future generations, about why this one was never dealt with? I
23 -t think Governmeht should have dealt with it openly at the end of that
24 very first process. I mgst indicate to you we have been asking for
25 Cabinet minutes on how this matter was resolved. We haven't found
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Dr C Stals

Dr]] de Jager

Adv T Madonsela :

them. We have asked for minutes of a meeting of the Reserve Bank
on how this decisi?n was made. We haven't found them. On the
other hand Mr Durr ... you know Mr Durr? Mr Durr ...

The bare feet one, is it? |

The bear feet one.

Mr Durr. Mr Durr was a shareholder in the Reserve Bank, so he is a
witness on the‘ other side and so you have to understand then Sir,
that we are sitting in the middle of this thing. We hold no view, we
are just trying to do everything that we can to conclude this th_ing.
We do ... Mister De Jager, you reminded us that we made a promise,
that once we have arrived at conclusions, we will share those

preliminary conclusions with you. We will do-so. We are trying to

“set-up a meeting around the 23 of this month, where we will share

those conclusions, because our preliminary conclusions were shared
with the Minister of Finance, the current Minister of Finance in 2013
when™ I mét with him. I already had a draft report and then
unfortunately I lost the Investigator. So that explains Sir, why the
matter lay totally unattended from 2013 until now, I had nobody,
because we decided that we would not burden our investigation
teams with it. We would have a single Investigéfor who would assist
me. That is just basically thenlthe end of the story. That is the
purpose of the méeting Sir, is to find out what happened according to
you in terms of those tWo transactions, and if you have any
information regarding when this report came back, how was this

report dealt with or if it wasn’t this report, the Davis Report, how

>
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1 was the final decision ... who made the final decision regarding what
2 | is going to happen with this (indistinct) and how was this decision

3 : made? I just want to ask you, Sir and the people accompanying you,
41 ~ thetwo Lawyers, at this stage to make any preliminary comments if-
5 you would like to? 1 know that Mr Moraitis has ... Moraitis, sorry Sir, |
6 wanted to already make a comment. |

7 | Mr C Moraitis . Yeah, I just want to make a technical point. I will not say anything in

8 respect of what you want information in respect of. 1 wasn’t around

then. Dr Stals is best place to answer, if he can answer what you
10 want.
11 | Adv T Madonsela : Yes, Sir.

12 | Mr C Moraitis . I do not want to say anything about that. You are correct, Dr Stals

13 | - ‘ must speak for himself. Dr De Jager and [ cannot speak for Dr Stals in
14 these matters. The only technical peint I wanted to make, there is
15 | . two points. The first one was the South African Reserve Bank has

never questioned your jurisdiction to investigate the South African

Reserve Bank. The South African Reserve Bank fully accepts the

18 . Public Protector’s ]ur15d1ct10n to investigate the South African
19 Reserve Bank and if there is any mlsunderstandmg on that part, I
20 would like to clear that up immediately.

21 | Adv T Madonsela : = Okay. .

22 : Mr Moraitis . The South African Reserve Bank questions your jurisdiction to

23 ! investigate the 1990’s and pre-constitutional issues around the

24 1980’s and the 1990’s, not because he does not want you to

25 investigate that, but he doesn’t believe your Act allows you to do .
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Dr JJ de Jager

Adv T Madonsela :

- DrJJ de Jager

Mr C Moraitis

that. However, you have explained what your position is with regard
to background information from the 1980’s and 1990’s. We do not
want to take issue with you in that regard. We do not necessarily

agree that your Act authorises that position, but we take no issue.

. That is a matter, which can be dealt with if it needs to be dealt with

later. You have asked to speak to Dr Stals and Dr Stals is here, and
would like to speak to you in that regard. I just wanted to clear that

up. The South African Reserve Bank would never challenge your

‘jurisdiction in that regard.

Yeah, can [ confirm that? It was never ... mean in our letters we also
set that out, so that is not a problem, but you know may I just add to
this? |

Thank you.

[ understand you are pressed for time, I understand you need to get
this issue resolved now. Let us rather leave whatever we have there,
it is there on record. If you want to speak to Dr Stals, he is there on
his own volition. He never ... [ must be clear, Dr Stals - and I'm
saying it in his presence you know so that you can hear it - he never
expressed any dismay or anything with regard to the faci that he had
to come here. He was always willing. It was o'r'ﬂy these issues that
we needed to clarify and those are the issues that we raised there. So
I think you know maybe it is the bést thing for us and for you under
the circumstances to assist you to get this thing finalised, that you
speak to Dr Stals.

And if there is one last point I may make, if there is any information
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1 specifically that you would like from the South African Reserve Bank,
2 I know you have indicated that you have asked for specific
3 ‘ information.

4 | AdvTMadonsela ; Yes.

5 | Mr C Moraitis .1 can't recall if there is any outstanding reguests on our side, but

6 please if there is, won't you put it in writing and ask the Reserve
7 ' Bank again, because at best we can come to you and say we don’t
8 have it or we don’t agree that it is relevant, or something like that,

but ] cannot recall Dr ...

10 | Drjjde ]ager . Yes, no, ] can ... maybe I can come in here.

11 | Mr Moraitis- : Yes.

12 D#‘ I} de Jager : There was a request for certain information. We did check for the
13 . ' . information and we have in the South African Reserve Bank, the
14 bank’s Provision Department, we have rcer,tain information that.we
15 have identified that is there. The reason why we haven't actually
16 supplied it yet was because of the problems that we had and that we

still felt you know we wanted some clarification on what this is for,

18 because | must just hasten to add that we must also be very careful in
19 ' terms of Section 33 of our Act, that we lshould VA not ﬁndei‘
20 circumstances whére it is not justified in terms of that section to
21 provide the information. T hat is the first part. The second part, I can
22 actually just give you the information. If we talk about Government
23 bonds - because I know that at some stage you were interested in
24 ) the Government bonds - we were requested by the National
25 Treasury to see if we could identify those Government bonds. NOU
TRANSCRIBUS CC - www.tl:anscribus.:c.za . transcribu;@gmai],cam - (Rindi) 682 323 7937 - (Office) 087 150 8703 5
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Adv T Madonsela :

Mr Moraitis

Adv T Madonsela :

Mr C Moraitis

Adv T Madonsela

obviously the Government bonds - the paper, the specific paper that

was issued at the time ~ that would only be in the possession of

ourselves, or whoever, but Dr Stals will explain that and once that

has matured and it is paid, the paper goes back to Government, so it

is there for cancellation. It is like when I have a debt instrument

from you and I keep the debt instrument as long as you don’t pay it
and the day you pay it, I hand it back to you and it is for you to decide
what you are going to do, so we checked our records. There was no
way In which we could identify ... that is according to the srtaff in our
bank, we didn’t have any information anymore about the debt
instruments themselves. So the only persons that would be able to
give it to yc;u would be Treasury, because they issued it in the first
instance and I did try and we did speak to Treasury, and they ngeded
information from us to see if they could identify that and my
understanding was you know those documents, the actual specific
certificates, they ... [ don’t know where they are. They are not in our
possession anymore.

Thank you, Sir.

Thank you, Madam.

Before we then move to Dr Stals, 1 just want to ﬁfstly then thank you
Doctor De Jager and Mister Moraitis ... is it Mister or Advocate? Sorry
Sir.

No, Mister. ¢

Mister. Okay, thank you. I may have misread the letter, but thank

you for clarifying. Then that is not going to be an issue in the report.
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1 | Dr]Jj de Jager . No, we definitely don’t stand outside the law, the Reserve Bank,
2 definitely.

3 | Adv T Madonsela : Thank you, Sir. The second issue then, you have indicated that your

4 . concern was ab_ggt_: us digging sométhing that happened before the-
5 Act that establishes ... the Public Protector Act, which Actlis 1‘.3.‘.9.5 -'an.c.im ”
6 | the office itself opened doors in October 19 .. the Act is 1994, the
7 ' ofﬁce opened doors in 1995 and we have explained ourselves, in that
8 we said we are only looking at alleged maladministration of 1997

and to make sense of that we need to then know what had

10 ' precipitated that. It is going to be impossible to judge the acts of the

11 : actors of 1997 without understanding what were they dealing with.

12 That is the context of looking back in the past. |
~ 13 | Mr Moraitis - . Okay.

14 | Adv T Madonsela : Regarding outstanding documents, I am grateful that you are saying

15 you do have some of the documents and hopefully now that we have
16 clarified that we are not only reinvestigating the propriety or |
f:}i"/ | impropriety of what happened in the past, but looking at the
18 propriety or impropriety of what happened post 1997 only, we could
19 get that information. The Reserve Bank hﬁs giveﬁ us secret
20 information, despite Section 33. The only .. not on this matter only,
21 . on other matters. The only requirement-was that we wefe supposed
22 to undertake that we will have the proper mechanisms in our offices
23 to keep that information secret and secondly, we will use that
24 information only for the purposes for which it was procured, and
25 thirdly, that before we issue a report we will talk to the Reserve Bank 3
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DrJJ deJager

Adv T Madonsela :

to then look at whether- the report may somehow compromise some
of the secrecy requirements of the Reserve Bank. Of course when we
deal with that, we will have to ... Doctor De Jager and Mister Moraitis,
as the lawyers helping Dr Stals, we have to also balance the Reserve
Bank Act, which precedes the Constitution and the Constitution,
because when we dealt with the security cluster again on Nkandla,
there was always balancing that, that our Act says the default

position is transparency and then we have some of those Acts that

require secrecy, and for good reasons. So we have to just find a good |

balance between the purposes of the secrecy and the constitutional
requirement of transparency and openness. The issue of the bonds
that you saj you cannot find ...

Well, it is a question, you know I don't know if .. itwon't be ... it is not
in our possession, because as I have explained to you it is the debt
instruments.

Yes. “]'was coming to that, that the interesting, but sad thing, is
Treasury has washed its hands and said, “We know hothing”. At that
time the Reserve Bank was delegated the powers of Treasury as well.
So the issuing of the bonds, the looking after the bonds, the work that
should have been done by Treasury at the timé' was being done by
the Reserve Bank and that Treasury knows nothing. We had a

delegation from Treasury here that we asked the same questions and

Treasury washed its hands about any knowledge of anything to do |

with the bonds and everything, but again for us what would help

though would be if ...
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Dr Jj de Jager

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr Jj de jager

If ] can just maybe help you there?
Yes?

Maybe Dr Stals can give you a better explanation'you know how

these bonds work, because the South African Reserve Bank acts as an

Meeting held between the Public Protector South Africa & Dr Chris Stals . Zz §

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

' DrCStals

Adv T Madonsela :

issuer of bonds for Government as well, you know, so in other words
.. but the instrument itself is still drawn by ..
I think I will cover that,

[Indistinct // Speaking simultaneously]
That is super, because we are now going to go into the questions. |
just wanted to clarify that Treasury has basically passed the buck
back to the Reserve Bank and we then have to ..
Okay, I think Treasury is right. Iagree with them, they didn’t have

anything to do with that.

~ Okay, thank you, Doctor Sfals. Now coming to you, Doctor Stals, we

just would like to know if you have any objection to taking the oath
and if you don’t, would you consider the oath binding on your
conscience and if so, would you say, “So help me God”, Sir?

I have no objection. It will not make any difference to me whether
"m under oath or not under oath, but I will také the oéth and I am
under oath. 1have got no problem. I will tell you"the truth, that is all.
Thank you, Sir. So you do swear that the evidence and information
you shall give shall be the truth and nothing but the truth, and if so,
please say, “So help me God"?

God help me.

Thank you, Sir. We have specific questions, but perhaps before we
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Dr C Stals
Dr]J] de Jager

Mr Moraitis

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

go into the specific questions, from an inguisitorial point of view I
have always found that it is easier for people to tell us a quick story,
rather than me asking_ question by question. So let's just firstly
confirm your full names, Sir? |

You want me to start speakiﬁg?

Full names?

Full names?

Your full names?

My full names? Christian with one “A”, Lodewyk Stals.

Thank you, Sir. If you can just tell us about your understanding of
what happened when this deal between the Reserve Bank,
Governmenﬁ and Bankorp was originally struck and leading to the
point at which we ... where we are right now? What you know about
this so-called Eankorp lifeboat please?

Yeah, do we have the full day?

No, jiist cut the corner, Sir and just what you know is this, this is
what was agreed and yeabh, this is how it came about?

It will bring back so many memories in my mind. Yeah. Okay, you
will respect firstly that I have been out of the Reserve ‘Bank for 17
years now. Secondly, that I'm getting older, at 81 and é half years |
don’t remember everything anymore.

No, congratulations on your Jong life.

But as you went through all these things, a lot of memories came
back. Thirdly, I didn’t have time to prepare myseif for exactly what

you wanted to know, but certainly I do know a lot of things that you
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1 R asked. Now your first question and then I thought I could go through
2 this, a lot of things and give you a long story, but let me concentrate
3 first on what do ... how do I remember, recall this whole situation.
4 : Well, I think you pointed out it started in 1985. Well, it goes back"
5 even further, It goés back years before ﬂiat. 1985, middle of the year
6 _ I was asked by the Minister of Finance to come and help him out,
7 because he couldn’t find a Director General for Finance, I didn't want
8 to go, but in the end between the Governor of the Reserve Bank, the
‘59 Minister and myself, I accepted that I: will go on. secondment to the
10 . Treasury for 5 years and help them out, serve as Director General for
11 ' Finance. At the same time the whole problem of the South African
12 international debt crisis developed. I was -the Senior Deputy
13 ‘ Governor iﬁ the Reserve Bank then in charge of the Reserve Bank's
14 foreign operations. Ihad very litile to do with domestic operatiéns
15 ' of the bank. So I was extremely busy at that time, but then 1 think fhe
16 negotiations between the Reserve Bank and Bankorp started. I did
:E:% attend the Goyernor’s committee meetings, because all those kinds of
18 : things are decided .. or thdse days were decided within the
19 ~ Governor's committee,‘ that is the Governor amﬁ the three Deputy
20 Governors. Decisions like that can be .. belong to the B‘oard of the
21 Reserve Bank, but there is a very formal document available in the
22 bank on the delegation of powers, from the Board of the Bank to the
!23 Governor and the three Deputy Governors, or for members of the
24 Board and théy have full power from the Board of Directors of the
25 | - Reserve Bank to take important. decisions. So the Governor’s
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Committee met very regularly and things like this came up in the
Governor's Committee, so surely when that first kind of assistance
was considered, I was in the Governor's Committee, but I had very—
little to do with that whole first transactions that took place. I said
this before, then some or other fortune hunter in London came out
with a letter and.said I told lies, but they produced a letter that I
signed and they said I~wrote the letter. Nonsense of course. As the
Senior Deputy Governor to sign the letter doesn’t mean I wrote it and
it doesn’t mean I had much to do with it, but the Governor happened
to be oversees, so I had to sign important things, but the letter they
then produced and published. It was a letter addressed to Merca

Bank, about an assistance to Merca Bank, so it wasn't to Bankorp at

all. In any case, that is the kind of things that I have to go live with |

for years and years and years, blamed for things. Well, okay, that is
more or less when it started. Now then Ileft for the Treasury in any
case and I worked at the Department of Finance for 4 years when
Gerhard de Kock died and I was ... 1999, 7% of August 1999 ] had to

go back to the Reserve Bank, Gerhard ... on the 8% of August. Gerhard

died ...
Mr C Moraitis 1959.
Mr B Dhlamini 1989,
Dr C Stals 1989, sorry, yeah.
MrBDhlamini : The7®?
Gerhard de Kock died on the 7% and I went back on the 8% of August.

Dr C Stals

OKkay, lots of things happened in those 4 years or so when I was away
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1 from the bank. I was very busy, extremely busy. I came back to the
2 bank two or three weeks before the Annual General Meeting had to
3 take place. I had to prepare a Chairman’s address for a meeting and
_____ 4 , so on, but early the next year in the course of 1990 Derek Keys came-
5 to see me. Derek Keys was thén the Chairﬁan of Bankorp and iater
6 also Minister of Finance in Mr Mandela’s Cabinet and so on. Derek
7 Keys came to see me and explained to me that they owed the Reserve
8 - Bank, I think it was something like R600 million, which they“

renegotiated every year and they had to start repaying this loan in

10 the middle of 1990 or somewhere, and there was no way they could
11 : do it. As a matter of fact they were running into more serious
12 problems and the bad book loans, loans that were no longer serviced,
130 - = : -was grovﬁng all the time and so on and so on and so on. Okay, we
14 negotiated If, Went- to ell.thv'ernor’s Comimittee and we approved it
15 that we‘would‘ continue to provide support for another year. Ithink
16 we increased the amount then, but I can’t give yoﬁ the exact details.

Well, as it turned out the situation in Bankorp got worse and worse,

18 . and the next year again by the end of 1990 they could not make the
19 repayments. Then [ think around about that timé we deéided in the
20 Governor's Committee and I'decided that lister;, this can’t go on
21 . - forever, tl_lat we have to make loans to this bank every few months,
22 ' extend the loans, give more loans and so on. SoIasked the Registrar
23 of Banks - it was in those days the Registrar of Deposit Taking
24 Institutions I think - to do a thorough investigation into what is
25 going on in this bank, what is the position of the bank, how ldng
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2

would we have to go on supporting the bank and so on. Okay, it took
a couple of months and the Registrar then came to me with a report
that he prepared, together with the External Auditors of the bank
and they presented to us a useless situation for the bank from the
Auditoré of the bank, and with a warning that the next report that the
Auditors will have to issue for this bank will have to be a qualified
report. To issue a qualified report is a death sentence, because the
public will immediately lose full confidence in the banks and there
will be a run on the bank and it will be forced into liguidation. The
bank was not ihsolvent, [ must make that clear to you. That was a
very important issue for us. We were reluctant to help a bank that
was insolvent. Its assets still exceeded its Iiabilities; but it could no

longer comply with the minimum capital requirements of the Banks

| Act, and the Registrar was then-in the difficult position that he had to

withdraw the licence of the bank and he had to tell the bank, “You

can’t go on doing banking business, because you are not complying

with the minimum capital requirements of the Reserve Bank Act.

Your assets may still exceed your liabilities, you are not insolvent,
but you will have to stop doing business as a bank if fhat qualified
report is published by your Auditors”. 0kay; that is where it ;';11}
started and then we had to take that difﬁculf Qecision you had
referred to, shall we just let this bank go or is this where this
problem of systemic risk, the domino effect - if one bank falls, it
pushes over the next bank, the next one, the next one, and the whole

banking system can collapse - the “contagion effect”. A confidence, it

"
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1 ' is based on confidence of péople in the bank. Now what ... the third
2 or fourth biggest bank in South Africa, R35 biliion of assets and
3 _ | liabilities, 25 000 clients, offices operating in Hong Kong, London and
_ 4 : New Yg_;_k, a big amounfc of foreign assets and liabilities, foreign’
5| _ clients. South Africa is sitting in a situation of a debt rescheduling
6 arrangement with international banking institutions. There was a
7 big shortage of capital in South Africa. What are we going to do with
8 this bank? Sure, it was a difficult decision to take. We consulted with

the Minister of Finance. We consulted with .. then at that stage

10 called in the major shareholder in Bankorp, who no longer does talk
11 - to Derek Keys, the Chairman of Bankorp. We also started talking to
12 Marinué Daling, who was the Cﬁief Executive of Sanlam and we said,
13 4 . o - “Look, listen, we are sitting here with a major problem, a big risk for
14 the stabilify of the South African banking system and thousands of
15 ' clients, international relations. What are we going to do?”. Well, one

of thereactions that came in one of the meetings we had in the office

of the Minister, Sanlam said, “Well, as the major shareholder what

18 can we do? We cdn just accept the situation and walk out of it, take
19 our losses. We have an investment of so many miilieﬁ raﬁd of capital
20 : ' in the bank and in terms of the Comparﬁes Act oﬁr loss is limited to
21 - that .amount of our shére capital. We have alreaﬁy used up all the
22 reserves of the bank, so we will just walk ouf of it and let the bank be
23 liquidated, and take our loss of R500 million”. I'm ﬁét-so sure it was
24 500, but I think it was R500 million. “We will take our loss and the
25 bank can be closed”. Okay, we started talking, thinking, talked to

- L)
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Eddie Gebrgé in the.Bank of England, I talked to Fisher in the
International Monetary Fund. We had long discussions and
eventually we decided that listen, as lender of last resort the Reserve
Bank will have to step in here and incidentally the Reserve Bank was
established in 1921, started its operations on the 15t of June 1921.
You go and read the first balance sheet that the Reserve Bank
pubhshed’at the end of June 1921, it had consisted of one big zisset, a

special loan to the National Bank of South Africa to rescue the bank,

okay? That is the function of the Reserve Bank. The very first

transaction it did in its life was to give a lender of last resort facility
to the bank. Okay, then we talked to the Minister again, the Minister
said, “There is no way that Government funds can be put into the
bank, but we agree with you, we can't let this bank be quui.dated
now”. We thought of all the implications it could have, so we put a
lot of force on Sanlam as the major sharehqlder. We said, “Well, we
can’t liquidate this bank, you can’t walk away from it. As the major
shareholder you have to work with us to try and keep this bank
going”. All kinds of alternatives were considel_'ed, despite what you |
will ‘read in some reports, which is ‘b}aming us that. we did not
consider the poséibﬂity of a merger of the baﬁk with other banks.
Seriously considered, but we came to the conclusion that no bank in
South Africa had enough capital to absorb this bank and big shortage
of liquidity in the markets, ca.pital,-so we couldn't approach another
bank to try and absorb this bank. The Reserve Bank had to provide

the necessary assistance. Okay, then my clever advisors in the bank,
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including Prof Jan Lombaard, the Deputy Governor and Chris de
Swardt, the Deputy Governor in charge of Bank Regulation and

Supervision, and Dr Hennie van Greunen, the Registrar of Banks

started working, “How can we provide this lender of last resort’

10
11
12
13

14

20
21
22
23
24

25

facility to this specific bank in this spéciﬁc situation that we find
oursélves in, in South Africa at this stage?”. Well, now some people
said we did not comply with best practices in the world. I challenge
anybody to show me a list of best practices that existed in 1990 or
what best practices must be. I again discussed it with the Bank for
International Settlements, with the IMFE. They all said, “You know,
most banks have what you have in your Article 33, They must keep it
confidential if they give any assistance and there are no standard
rules or regulai;ions around in the bank”. There is one that compares
what we did with best practices in the -@orld. It is funny and
sometimes I laugh about these things, sometimes I want to cry. They
stumbled over a speech that Eddie George held in 1993 in Hong
Kong, which Eddie George gave six things that he thought a bank as
the Central Bank should compiy with when it gives assistance to

banking institutions. Eddie had discussed ... we had a conference of

Central Bankers in London a month before Eddie held that speech. |

- gave a presentation. at that meeting in Londen with the Bank of

England. I can tell you a lot about what [ said in that speech, but in
any case Eddie more or less used six things that we agreed to in that
Bank of England meeting 1993. Okay, wonderful. If we should have

had those standards in 1985 or in 1989 or in 1990, we could héve
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used it, but incidentally we did. We got very much close on that,
because | think we had a big influence on that speech ... on that six
things that Eddie Geofge then mentioned in his speech, but in any
case we go back to 1990. We are confronted now with this situation
and my advisors all came up and I said, “Number one, we-must'
comply with all legal requirements. There is a Reserve Bank Act,
there-are rules, there are regulations. Make sure that we comply
with this”, and I went further. I said, “Employ outside legal advisers
to assist you with drafting this agreement’. We went to .. we
appointed the respec-ted firm of Rooth and Wessels. They appointed
two senior Attorneys, T ippy Luttig and Willem du Plessis, both dead
at this stage. One of my problems that I had to live solong, but in any

case with the assistance of the two legal advisers they drafted a

~document, a Loan Agreement, that you have to enter into with

Bankorp to consolidate everything that hias happened so far, to make
sure ... and I said, “Please, let’s get something that will have ... that
will terminate, that will come to an end at some stage. We can't go
on every year and every year”, and so on.- Okay, they worked for a
few months and they produced a massive document of 51 pagesasa.
Loan Agreement between the Reserve Bank aﬂd Bankorp. Finally
this document was signed in 1991 for a 5-year period, working back
from 1990 and it will go up to 1995, and during this period this Loan
Agreement will apply. Now I have seen legal opinions.' You know
sorry for all the legal people around me here, but I have really come

to the conclusion that something as difficult as this lender of last
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1 resort facility is like going to a casino to try and get a legal opinion on
2 what it is worth. It depends on how the dice will drop that day, to
3 ‘what legal adviser you go to. We had two legal adviser;s'-to help us
4 _ - d_raft it. At alater stage there came the Hoberman investigation into
5 the Duros Tollgate affair. I don’t know if you have taken notice of
6 that very important invéstigation that took place on the Tollgate
7 0 affair, because it was a wonderful opportunity. All kinds of stories
8 ~ went around about this donations and money that was given to
H)9 Bankorp, but it is aﬂ nonsense. Nothing like that every happened,
10 but we couldn’t say anything, becaﬁse we committed and we Were
11 : bound by Article 33 of the Reserve Bank Act, not allowed to disclose
12 anything about a transaction between the bank and anyone of its
13 . S ~ individual clients.  Then came this Hoberman, Article 21
14 ' Investigation into the Tollgate affair and there appeared the two
15 criminals and crooks of Haskins and Diedericks, and the srtofies they
16 told about this lifeboat, it is just amazing. The Reserve Bank then
decided but listen, this is the opportunity. We approached
18 ' Hoberman. and said, “Please, can we come and give you evidence
19 before this meeting about this lifeboat?” and theﬁ he suﬁpoenaed us
20 'and we said, “Wonderful”. Rooth and Wessels céme to us, “Use this
21 opportunity, because the Reserve Bank Act says you are not allowed
22 to disclose any information unless forced to do so by a competent
23 i Court of. Law”. They established that this investigation 21 .. Article
24 21 Investigation is a competent Court of Law. Wonderfui, we have
25 the opportunity and it is a public Hearing, and now we have-the
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opportunity to disclose everything. Okay, so we went there. We
gave them all the information, I gave them evidence and ail those
bigmouth people who shouted at the Reserve Bank, after I talked for

three hours, they had no questions to ask. One of our other enemies

also said, meaning .. a criminal that should have been in jail long

‘before that, David Gleason, the last man to see Kibble alive, had
dinner with him a few hours before he was murdered, shot, but in
any case let me not elaborate on David Gleason. But he wrote a letter
to say that “This ability to be an oralilst(?) like Plato Aristotle were in
the Greek civilisation, still .hasla lot of influence today, because Stals
éonvinced everybody and told them a lot of lies” and so on and so on
and so on, but there were no questions asked. ‘Hoberman said to me
afterwards and in his final report said he could find nothing wrong
with the Reserve Bank’s assistance, and it had nothing to do vﬁth
Tollgate and these were just excuses used by those people, but in any
case then we disclosed everything. Now okay, we laid on the table
the document, the Loaﬁ Agreement and [ emphasise “Loan
Agreement”, because again there is a legal interpretation thatitisa
simulated transaction. Well, sorry, I'm not a legalist.- I'm just a
simple economist and banking expert, but if tﬁat Loan Agreement
should really be construed as a simulated agreement .. well, the
Reserve Bank is doing simulated transactions every day, today, I can
assure you. Go and look what the bank is doing today. It is exactly
the same transactioh that they are doing every day today with the

banks when they give them liquidity and money market assistance

TRANSCRIBUS CC - www.transcribus.co,za * transeribus@gmail.com - [Rind{) 082 223 7937 + (Cffice) 087 150 8703 f

a/) i \)i



Meeting held between the Public Protector South Africa & Dr Chris Stals . 35
B September 2016

1 | on a day to day basis. Okay, what was the essence of that Lo'an
2 Agreement? It said, “The Reserve Bank will make a loan to you, so
3 you consolidating all the outstanding positions and so on” ..
4 | MrBDhlamini : Thatisto _Bankorp? |
5 | Dr CStals : To Bankorp, “To you aé Bankorﬁ. .”.[‘.he Reserve Bank wﬂl mak.e a loan.
6 tb Bankorp of R1.5 billion. We will credit your account in the books
7 of the bank with R1.5 billion. The Reserve Bank Act does not allow to
8 give a loan to anybody without the necessary collateral, so what is
. ’9 acceptable collateral to the Reserve Bank? In our daily operations of
10 giving loans to banking institutions, Go?ernment bonds,'Treasﬁry
11 - bonds and certain commercial paper with a maximum surety of 21
12 : days. We will need collateral for this loan that wé give you”. Now we
i3 : - go into the second step, “You must use this RL5 billion to buy
14 Government bonds”. The interest rate én Government bonds at ﬁat
15 | stage was 16/17%, that was the normal market rate of interest. “So
16 you will buy Government bonds for RL5 iﬁllion with that loan that
we extend to yéu and you will deposit those Government bonds in
18 the Reserve Bank, and cede it and leave it open to the bank. That is
19 our éollateral. That is how we do it every day w.hen we "rnake loans
20 | to banking institutions on a day to day basis at daﬁy clear-in".
21 | MrBDblamini : Discount window?
22 | DrCStals | . Discount window nowadays. So okay, that was worked out in detail
23 " then. “You will pay the Reserve Bank 2% interest on this loan”. That
24 was incidentally at a much later stage reduced to 1%. “Why?
25 Because that will cover all the administration costs.of the Reserve 6 ]
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Bank to manage this loan and you will pay us 2% interest, you will
earn 16% or 17% on the Government bonds that you buy and that
difference ... income, that is what you must use to get your books
right again over the next 5 years. This is the contribution we can
make as a Jender of last resort to get your books right again. Now
what must you do with this income stream that you will be earning?”.
R225 million a year [ think it worked out more or less. “You must
write off your bad book. So the next step, we require from your
Auditors to divide the total book of Bankorp into two divisions, the
good bank and the bad bank. You will put in the bad bank all your
bad loans, unrecoverable loans, loans that you have to write off, that
if you have no chance to get it back again. We need a certificate from
your External Auditors for every one of those accounts, we wai_lt the
name of that account, we want the outséanding amount and this is
the bad book”. Okay, now Davis(?) says we didn't put all the loans in
a different company. We did put it in a different account, which I
think was in any case a better way to do it and we ring-fenced that
account, and we said, “This is the bad book and this is what you will
correct over the next 5 years with this assistance that- the Reserve
Bank is giving yoﬁ, and that means that your Eﬁemal Auditors now
accepted this, that they will not have to issue a gualified statement

anymore and what is more, go and read the Loan Agreement. You,

' the main shareholder, Sanlam, will carry half of this book. Sorry, you

have already made losses, but you have to provide for a further one

half of this bad book”. The béd book was R2 billion more or less.
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1 “The Reserve Bank’s contribution will be close to 1.1 ... 1 or 2 billion,
2 or something like that, but the rest you must carry as the main
3 shareholder in the bank. You must go much further, you must clo;e a
4 . lot of brapches, you must reduce your staff, you must” ... oh, yeah,”
5 “You are not allowed to get any dividends on your shares anymore..m
6 The dividends that you get every yeér that will accrue to you, Sanlam
7 as the main shareholder, will be reinvested in the bank to get it right
8 again, to get its capital right again” and so on-a lof of restrictions -

and “You change your top management” and so on, and they did.

10 Chris van Wyk was asked to resign or to leave the bank, Piet
1_1 ' - Liebenberg took over. A lot of staff changes were made, branches
12 were closed.l “Restructuring of the whole organisation, get rid of all
13 these loose subéidiaries, like Merca. Bank and all these others,
14 | consolidate them all in ope big organisation”, and these areAall
15 conditions. “The Registrar of Banks will attend all your meetings,

reguldr discussions on this restructuring. The Registrar will report

to the Governor of the Reserve Bank regularly on what is happening

18 ‘ and we have the right to appoint a Director to the Board, if necessary,
19 to attend all your Board meetings”. Okay, thaf is all m the Loan
20 _ Agreement and further, “The Joan will be fully r‘épaid after 5 years
21 when you wﬂI be able to sell your Government bonds again or when
22 | the Government bonds come to maturity, but in any case at the end
.23 of 5 years you will use these Government bonds, they belong to you, |
24 they have been ceded to the Reserve Bank and they have been made
25 transferable to the Reserve Bank, but they belong to you, you earn
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Mr B Dhlamini
Adv T Madoensela :

Dr C Stals

Dr ] de Jager
Mr B Dhlamini
Dr C Stals

Mr B Dhlamini

Dr C Stals

the full interest on it, you are the owner of these Government bonds,
but at the end of the 5 years either you give the Reserve Bank

permission to use that cession and sell the bonds or you take the

bonds back and sell it, or you do whatever you want, but you repay

the full loan, the full amount of the loan that we have extended to
you, the R1.5 billion, you will repay at the end of the 5 years”. Okay,
that was the Loan Agreement and I'm surprised to hear that you say
you cion’t have the Loan Agreement. This is it. No, this is not
(indistinct), but itis in here, 61 pages.

Could we make a copy?

Yes, we would appreciate it. We could perhaps make a copy.

Well, this is my own personal thing. This is what | presented to the
Tollgate affair.

QOkay, shall we make ...

Yeah, you can.

Maybe you wait a bit, because there are more things in here.

Okay.

Okay, so that is the Loan Agreement. At least ten places in this thing
you will find reference to this Loan Agreemenf.' Nowr‘go say this is
not a Loan Agreement, sometimes I just laugh at this, but that is the
Loan Agreement, 61 pages and after the Tollgate affair it became a
public document, because we presented this thing.' I tabled it myself
in that Tollgate Enquiry and this is it, ydu can see it is signed by a lot
of people, it is ... and I can read to you from this document. Itis a

Loan Agreement that the Reserve Bank extended on the normal '_basis
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1 toa bank The difference is, it is a longer term, it is not a very short-
2 | term loan and the 2% interest we charged on it. That is where the
3 , subsidy came in. We charged them only 2% and they earned
4 15/16%, _and that difference that is the assistance that we provided-
5 to them. Now that thing worried me, ab.ou'.t this low interest at 2%
6 and there came a time when Heath started investigating all these
7 things, but [ was still worried about it. So I agreed with the Registrar
8 | . of Banks that we shall get a special investigation by Senior Advocate,

an independent Advocate from Johannesburg and we appointed

10 : Ginsburg?

11 | DrJJ de Jager . Yes, Philip Ginsburg.

12 | DrC Stals : Philip Ginsbﬁrg (SC) and said, “Now these are all the things that
13 happened wifh this bank, with this agreement and so on. Just can
14 you give us an opinion ex parte, what is‘ called a funny thing in Iégal
15 terms, an opinion on this whole Loan Agreement and in_pairticular
16 about>that low interest rate that we charged”. Okay, this man

presented the report, which I think we still have it somewhere, but

18 | he said there is nothing wrong with this whole agreement. The
19 Reserve Bank acted fully within its powers. "Opinion, lelhder of las*;
20 resort assistan;e”, ex parte opinion given by the Honourable Philip
21 - Ginsburg (SC).

22 | AdvT Madonsela : Would you care to share that with us, Sir?
23 | DrCStals : Uhm?

24 | Adv T Madonsela : Would you care to share that with us?

25 | DrC Stals . Idon’tmind. ' g
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Adv T Madonsela :

DrCStals

Mr B Dhlamini

Dr C Stals

Thank you.

I don’t think this was ever published anywhere, but [ have no
problem.

No problem?

This is .. okay, so we had two legal adviseré. We did get a legal
opinion at some sfage, we made this Loan Agreement. Okay, what
happened to the loan? On the day that it was effected we went
through the normal procedures that we do every day when we give

loans, we debit loans and advances in the books of the Reserve Bank,

-

| we credit Bankorp. We say .. like any bank will give you an

overdraft, we say, “Now okay, you have a credit of R1.5 billion, which

you can now use. First consolidate the outstanding positions,

-whatever it was. There was an additional amount. This is your |

R1.5 billion, but now we want full coverage for this loan, so you must
deposit R1.5 billion with the Reserve Bank in Government bonds
before we will allow you to use that overdraft account that we have
given you, the overdraft loan, the loan that we have given you". Then
I think ... and I'm not so sure exactly how it was done, but I think the
bank or Sanlam people came back to us and said, ”Weli,'it is difficult
to buy R1.5 billi.on of Government bonds in the rﬁarketplace. Canyou
help us?’. We talked to the Treasury at the time and they said,
“Wonderful, this is a bonus for the Treasury. We have to issue about
RS billion of Government bonds to finance the budget, normal
Government expenditufe and we will just make an issue as part of

our normal issue of Government bonds to finance the budget deficit,
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1 and if Bankorp should come to us tomorrow with R1.5 billion, sure,
2 we have no problem, we will issue them on normal conditions,
3 normal interest rates, normal maturities”. I think they even agreed
4 : to givg it 5-year bonds, which is more or less over the same period as -
5 | the Loan Agreement and those bonds were issued.. .Nothi.ng. spe'ciai
6 issued, not a special issue, not a special interest rate, lnormal
7 Government bond issues to finance the budget of the Government.
8 They could have just as well bought bonds in the marketplace as far

as the Reserve Bank was concerned, but in any case wonderful, we

10 helped the Treasury, one of the big beneficiaries of this whole Loan
11 Agreement, enabled the Treasury to issue RL.5billion of bonds
12 without going to the marketplace. It reduced the pressure on
13 | - - interest rates on Government bonds, it made it easier for 'the
14 Treasury to finance the budget of that year, because here camé a
15 sudden de;mand, a sudden source of funds that we did not rely on

and they did not expect. So if anything, Government, Treasury

benefited from that whole loan operation, because they could sell

18 | R1.5 billion of Government bonds out of their normal budget
19 procedures. Okay, that is the only way that Treésury céme into it,
20 Government, except for negotiations and talké, but they didn't
21 . finance anything. They financed the budget deficit, they got money
22 for the budget deficit, money as in the budget deficit and they issued
+23 ‘ Government bonds for it. That is why I said earlier I understand
24 Treasury will say,‘ “Well, we can't identify those bonds”. I can't think
25 how they can, it is part of the Government bond issues of that yéar,

- . L)
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Drj]] de Jager

Dr C Stals

1991 or wﬁatever it was, and if they paid the énnua} interest on the
bonds, together with all the other interests they paid on all the
outstanding bonds, there was nothing special in it for them. It wasn't
a special issue, it wasn't a special interest rate, it wasn't something
that special. They sold Government bonds to Bankorp and they sold
Government Bonds to Barclays, and they sold Government bonds to
Nedbank. As I say, there was nothing in it for the Government.
Where did the funds come from? That is something that {indistinct)
again. [ speqt hours with Heath and I will ltell you in honesty now -
and it will be recorded - Heath could not read a Balance Sheet, he
couldn’t understand an Income and Expenditure Account and the

finances. I spent hours with him and he didn’t understand it, and

when I tried to-explain to him that the Reserve Bank issues money, -

that is what makes the Reserve Bank a very special institution, it can
issue money, it can create money, it can issue bank notes. Then I
tried to explain to him that on the Balance Sheet of the Reserve Bank
.. it is the only institution in the world you will find that, but on the
Balance Sheet of the Reserve Bank bank notes never appear as an
asset. It is a liability. Now that is what confused Heath; He thought
this was magic, ydu know. We cannot allow the -Reserve Bank ...
Maybe if I just can come in here. If you take your rand and you put it
into your bank account, it is going to be for your bernefit, but if it is
the South African Reserve Bank that receives a rand in its own hands,
it is its own debt instrument, so it isa liability.

It is a )iability of the Reserve Bank. Even if you take the Balance
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1 ) Sheet of the Reserve Bank tomorrow - they are publishing nonsense

2 and nonsense — you will find bank notes is a liability. You will find no
3 South African bank notes on the asset side of the Balance Sheet of the
4 ' - Reserve Bank. So the Reserve Bank has ... that is - you referred to it ="
5 : Treasury delegated some of. .its power§ to ‘.ck.l.e ﬁeserve .Banllc
6 Government delegated its power to create money to the Reserve
7 Bank and that power, yoﬁ create money out of nothing, out of the
8 blue. That is the power of a Central Bank and that is why it is so.

important to have a responsible Governor in the Reserve Bank,

10 : because you can create money and if you create too much money,
11 : you destroy the money, you create inflation. You have the example
12 on your border, Zimbabwe. Go to Zimbabwe tomorrow and find out
13 what happened to them in the last 5 years. Mugabe took over Athe
14 Central Bank and started issuing money and the Rhodesian dollar
15 lost its total value, to such an extent that they can’t use it anymore,
16 nobody wants to accept it. They have to use US dollars and South

African rand. That is the danger of creating too much money from

18 the Reserve Bank and that is why the Reserve Bank must be an
19 independent institution. It must not be coptrollea by Gox}ernment, it
20 : | must not be directed by Government, it must nét be instructed by
21 Government what to do. It must be an independent institution.
22 Independence given to it by Government, sure, but it must be
23 | independent and that is why it is important that the Reserve Bank
‘24, should not just create money, and spend money and give money
25 away. No, surely; that is why you needed a 61-page Loan AgreementJ
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Dr C Stals

wheﬁ you gave R1.5 billion loans to a bank and what ﬁappened in the
end? The loans were fully repaid. Every transaction, every cent
during that 5-year period were recorded in the books of the Reserve
Bank in the normal way. The income of 2% and later 1%, well that is
all that it is actually worth for us, that we reflect it from year to year.
The outstanding claim on Bankorp on the asset side of the Reserve
Bank it stayed there for 5 years and finally it was repaid, Bankorp
sold its Gévernment bonds back to Government or somewhere ..
well, Absa at tﬁat stage and used the proceeds, and repaid the loan to |
the Reserve Bank. Sure, it is fully repaid, the loan was repaid, everﬁz
cent c.)f it and if you have doubt about that, why not go into the books

of the Reserve Bank? Appoint your Auditor, ask them to go through

the books of the Reserve Bank. Why not get ... yeah, wéll you can ask |’

the Reserve Bank’s Auditors, but go backin 1990, g0 back to 1985, go
back anyone of those dates, you will find all those entries in the
bocks of the Reserve Bank, Sure. It was a normal loan operation of
the bank.
[Cell phone interference]

I should have switched this off long ago, sorry. Oné of my golf
partners. Okay, so that is what [ say, you know. if you have doubt, if
you don't believe me, if you have- doubt about it, why not get
Auditors to go through the books of the Reserve Bank? VYou will find
every detail of all these transactions. I don't know if the bank keeps
its records for 35 years, because we are talking about 35 years ago,

in 1985, yeah, but surely all those entries went through the bodks of

TRANSCRIBUS CC - www.transcribus.co.za - transcribus@gmail.com - (Rindi) 082 323 7937 - (Office) 087 150 B?Oi) .
1N

BS
" 44

ey

%



6

Meeting held between the Puklic Protector South Africa & Dr Chris Stals o 45
8 September 2016
1 the bank and were recorded, and were handled as a normal banking
2 : transaction. Why ... well, you come back to Article 33, you are not
3 allowed to disclose any information. For that reason the Auditors,
4 e - the_ExternaI Auditors of the Reserve Bank, they were Deloitte’s and T
5 S _don’t know who the other firm was, they had to see me every year -
6 I mean was Governor for 5 years - to discuss with me the report they
7 will issue, For 5 years every year this came up in the final statements
8 that we are going to publish, “Drawn up by you, the External

Auditors, how did you handle that transaction, because we must

10 make sure nobody will be able to make any deductions from it". It

11 E was never an issue, it was never a problem, because in banks ... loans
12 | ‘ and advances to banking institutions in thése‘,years amounted to
13 - R5 bilﬁon,- and that included the R1.5 billion to Bankorp and from
14 ' R5 billion nobody would make any deductions and so on, could méke
15 : any deductions, but it was recorded in the books of the bank. It V\.ras
16 published in the ar'muai Balance Sheet of the Reserve Bank as part of

loans and advances paid by the bank. The interest earned came into

18 the proﬁt and loss account of the bank. Okay, thatis the bank’s story
19 and the loan was fully repaid. Okay, you are talkmg about reclaiming
20 something. Well, number one, what is it you 'are talking about?
21 ' Certginly not the lIoans. The loans were extended, the loans were
22 repaid, the loans were covered by collateral, the loans were handled
23 in absolutely the normal way. Sure, but there must be somehow or
24 ‘ other that assistance was provided, because we wanted to rescue the
25 | bank and we wanted to help them cover this huge big bad book fhat
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they developed through bad management in the 1970’s and early
1980’s. Surely there must have been some kind of contribution?
Well, easy, the contribution came from the difference in the interest
we charged them and the iﬁterest they earned on their investment in
the Government bonds. Now to whom did that accrue? I mean that
was your next question. If you want to claim something you have to
claim that interest flow. You can'’t talk about a loan. The loan was
fully repaid, a normal loan. Now that again is fully spelled out in this
document. Nobody after 1990 in any case, when that final Loan
Agreement was entered into - and the same apply to the previous
sections of it - it is difficult to define who benefited from the loan. I
think it is the wrong word to use. The loans were not intended ... or
the assistance was not intended to benefit anybody. It was intended
to protect somebody, it was intended to protect the clients of
Bankorp, the depositors with Bankorp, the people who made
investments in Bankorp, loans, they were protected, because if in
liquidation they would have had to accept a big loss and that is
where the problem of systemic risk comes into it. People want to
have confidence in their money. If I have money ina Chéque Account
with a registered commercial bank institution, i‘want to know I can
use my money, I can write out a cheque against it, I can nowadays
use electronic transfers against it and it is safe, otherwise I will not
put it with a bank. I will insist on getting bank notes and putting it
under my bed or something like that. So you must protect the

confidence that people, the clients of the bank have in a Banking
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1 institution. Now surely if clients start losing their money in a
2 banking institution, they need to ask questioﬁs about the safety of
3 the banking institution. Why should I put my money with this
4 _ : banking institution? Shouldn’t I take my money away from all the*
51 - bankiﬁg 1nst1tut10ns, if I'm going to lose billibns dr m.ii.li.én.s of faﬁd in
6 a banking institution? 1 agree with you, it is difficult to make that
7 assessment. For legal people it is a different kind of an attitude or an

exercise to try and make that assessment, is there a systemic risk or

not? For Central Bank it is a very difficult decision to take and it was

10 an extremely difficult decision for us t.o take. Should we not allow

11 this bank just to go the full way and be liquidated? What will happen
12 to the next bénk, the other bank? Is it then not goiné to cost us much
13. : : more to try and-solve this problem? What is going to happen to the
14 ' safety of our banking institution, the confidence in our banking
15 .institution, in our banking structure? Yesterday somebody boasfed
16 ‘ again in Parliament — was it Ramaphosa or somebody ~ about how

sound our bankirig system is and how well it is regulated, and

18 protected and so on. Sure, why don't we appreciate what we people
19 had to go through in those periods? Ican assure.l you if \;ve didn't go
20 through this exeréise, we would have had a depléted banking sector
21 “ " now. We would not have had this best banking system in the world,
22 now in 2008 and I again got compliments from many places -
23 . including Kit McMahon interesting enough - that we managed our
24 ' banking system so well that we have such a sound and healthy
25 banking sector or banking system at the moment. I mean yeah, we
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can differ, we can ﬁave different opinions on that, but looking back
with the advantage of hindsight, obviously we did the right thing in
1990 and the period around Bankorp. We protected the banking
sector of South Africa. We made sure that their stability, confidence
will be retained in the banking sector and the way it worked out,
again with the advantage of hindsight, nobody lost any money in the
transaction. The Reserve Bank was fully repaid for the loan that it
made to the other bank. The Reserve Bank was fully covered for its
administration costs, even with the 2% and the later 1%. The
Government was never involved in it. No Government money was
ever used in this transaction. You can say, “What about the interest
on the Govefnment bonds?”. The Government would have had to pay
that interest in any case, were it for Bankorp or lifeboat or lender of
last resort assistance that the Reserve -Bank gave, it was part o;f the
ﬁormal budget expenditure of the Government, the budget deﬁcit,
the need to iséue Government bonds. As a matter of fact, as [ have
explained to you, the Government benefited from it, because an
additional demand was created that helped the Government to keep
interest rates marginally lower than what it wéuld otﬁerwise have
been. So no Government funds ever came into the picture there. You
can talk about the monej that the Reserve Bank created. It cost the
Reserve Bank nothing, not a cent to create. So we earned an
additional 2%, 1% on this loan that we made, that we would not have
earned otherwise. So the income of the Reserve Bank actually

increased because of thatloan facility. Again, funny, it is magic, but it
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1 is true. You can say the Reserve Bank could have used Vthat money to
2 : make its own investment in Government bonds and earned 15%.
3 Yes, but we would notlhave done it, because we have a responsibility

4 ‘ to ﬁght mﬂatlon We don’t create money to earn income. That is not*

5 a function of the Reserve Bank and if it becomes a funchon, you go
6 the Rhodesia way or the Zimbabwe way. So surely it makes no sense
7 to say yes, Eut the Reserve Bank could have invested the R1.5 billion
8 , in some other place. No, the Reserve Bank would not have created
29 that money and again the way that_ the transaction Wals designed
10 helped us to control the moﬁey supialy. We are creating R1.5 billion.
| 11 ‘ It worried me a lot. I was very committed to fight inflation. Inflation
12 | was 17% whén [ was appointed Governor in 1989. It was less than
213 : 2% when 1 retired 10.years later. So I was very committed that I
14 ficht inflation. The one way to make suré that you fight inflation, you
15 don't create money unnecessary. Now I'm forced into a situation
16 where I have to creafe mone'y for h\elping Bankorp or a banking
institution. Okay, we said now you know if we have to create this
18 money, let it not go into the private sector to be spent At Jeast if it
19 | goes to Government it helps, because Government musf ﬁnance_ its
20 budget in any case and the Reserve Bank does hélp the Government
21 - from time to ﬂme by investing in Government bonds. So we said let’s
22 try and channel it to Government, so at least its inflationary effect
23 will be less when it goes to Government. So you know now we go
24 back to .. and then [ say again there was very little example, very
25 little experience,. very little information of what the Central Banks
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- did around the world as lenders of last resort. 2008/2009 the whole

situation exploded in the world, just about every Central Bank in the
world had to step in and provide assistance, My Gosh, if I compare
with what we did in 1990 around and what the éentral Banks did'in
2008/2009, well ... I agree, our arrangements did not comply with
best practices in the world. They were just better. So you can go
back now and compare. Therel are many examples now on how
Central Banks provide a lender of last resource facility. They were
not available in those years. We had to do our own things based on
Walter Bagehot and (indistinct) Adam Smﬁth of 1694 when the Bank
of England was created, but I have no problem, I have no reservation
today looking back on this, despite what all the people are saying
about what the Reserve Bank did at that ti'me_. [ think we did the
right thing, 1 think we. achieved the right result. It is the agony of
Central Banking, you have to gro through that. If you are Governor of
the Reserve Bank, bad luck, you have to go through this. Nowadays
they are being paid for it. In my time it was a great honour for me to
do that job and | had to accept these kinds of problems, and that is
why I went to the Tollgate affair, that is why I went. lfo the Heath
Comumission, that is why [ went to this Davis Cdfnmission. I had the
respdnsibility, ] was Govefnor of the Reserve Bank. I had sometimes
very little to do with some of the things, but I was the Goverﬁor of
the Bank and I was the head, and I was prepared to defend it and I'm
still prepared to defend it today. Now again you raised some things

that I really must - in your own interest - refer to, whatever you
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want to write and so on to protect yourself and your institution’s
2 very good name. Reservé Bank owns no shares in a Reserve Bank.
3 You say the Reserve Bank is one of the shareholders. As far as |
4 know it never got issued, not a single one. The Reserve Bank is nota:
5 shareho”l.tier 1n tﬁlé Résérvé Bank. ”
6 | Dr]] de jager Government hasn’t got shares in ;che Reserve Bank.
7 | DrCStals Government hasn’t .. sorry, the Government has no shares in the
8 Reserve Bank.
g9 DrJJ de Jager There may be things like .. I know the Police WidoWs Fund, the
10 Police Widows Fund have about 3 or 4 shares, but that is about
11 (indistinct).
12 | DrCStals But in any case if they do hold shares, they are restricted by the
13 ~ R10000.00.
14 | DrjjdeJager No, but they don'’t (indistinct), they don’t;
15 | DrCStals But they never had shares in the bank, no, no way, but in any case, so
16 that i§ irrelevant. I said you know I looked at it and that is why [

remember it. I said in that conference in the Bank of (indistinct), as
far as 1992, South Africa event ... well, I can tell you a lot about the
independence of the Central Bank, but in any case [ was very

independent' at that time. Why? Because the South African

. Government was going out in transit(?) and didn't want to take any

responsibility. , They had Ministers of Finance, like Chris Liebenberg
and then Derek Keys and so on, and they couldn’t tell me anything
what I had to do, from experience 1 have had 45 years in the bank

and so on, and [ couldn’t go to them for any advice. 1 said in that
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speech in London, I said, “You know a Central Bank can only be as
independent as the Government of the day wants it to be”.
Remember it was created by a Special Act of Parliament, the Act of
(indistinct). So this independence of the Reserve Bank also is
something that you have to have ... be realistic about.

May I just maybe ask just for clarity, the link between Absa and

Bankorp won't you just elaborate a little bit on that?

Okay. Okay, in any case I said to them at the Bank of England
meeting that “I can assure you, it can get very lonely if you become
an independent Central Bank”. You need your Minister of Finance,
you neéd your Government, you need to talk to them at times, you

need to understand their policies, you have to work closely together

with fiscal policies, but in any case the Reserve Bank is an .

independent institution and I have to emphasise that. Okay, you
want me to say something about the link with Absa?

just the link, yeah.

Yeah.

Okay, now this then ... in this Loan Agreement of 61 pages we did
take into account the possibility of a merger, of a takéover of this
troubled bank, of this'problem bank. Soit read‘s' in that document ...
you will find 3 full pages making provision for a takeover of Bankorp
by another bank. Okay, this event then came in 1992, again to the
relief of the Reserve Bank, wonderful. This could now terminate this
critically sick problem, a problerh that we have with this criticaily

sick bank, Absa can take it over. Now there again I was not so much
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1 involved in it It wasn’t much of an administrative problem. My
2 Deputy Governor, Chris de Swardt, handled that whole situation.
3 The only important thing was, it said in this Loan Agreement that
4 | Sanlam cannot sell its shares to anybody without the approval of the-
5 Reserve Bank, as Jong és t.hi.s. Lbaﬁ Ag;eement wouldapply So”'.chey.
6 had to approach the Reserve Bank and for another reason, they had
7 to ask the Reserve Bank what would now happen to this Loan
8 Agreement, this special assistance agreement? Okay, the Reserve

Bank then negotiated with Absa, entered into a special agreement

10 with Absa, signed by Chris de Swardt - I didn't sign that one ~ the
11 : Deputy Governor and that Loan Agfeement more or less just
12 confirmed té Absa that the existing agreement:will continue. Absa
13 : . will take over the bad book loan, the good book loan and Absa will do
14 the administration of that bad book loaﬁ, Absa will use the proce.eds
15 they get from the Government bonds to write off the bad book loan
16 and-Absa will make full repayment of the loan at the end of its

mami'ity, when it comes to maturity, and that is more or less the

18 essence. Absa thén wanted to substitute some loans and I think the
19 Reserve Bank said, “No way, that is fixed and caét, that ;rvas fixed in
20 1990, that was the list provided by the Auditors of the bank and
21 - which must be certified every year by the Auditors”. Then a loan
22 agreeﬁent provision was made that if they should recover any of
23 those loans, it will be deducted from the assistance given to the bank.
24 ~When it came to the end of the period the External Auditors of Absa
25 had to provide the Reserve Bank to confirm to us that the full amount

- ‘ ¢
TRANSCRIBUS CC - www.transcribus,ce.za + transcribus@gmail.com - (Rindi) 082 323 7937 - (Office) 0B7 150 B703 m/ 3

{7 i



10

11

12

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Meeting held between the Public Protector South Africa & Dr Chris Stals

8 September 2016

was used for the write-off against the book. The External Auditors
came to us then with a report that said that the tofal bad loan book
had increased beyond expectation after Absa took over the bank, and
therefore the shareholders of Absa had to provide additional fundirig
for that loan. What they received from the Reserve Bank was far less
than the total loss and therefore that clause that said if they recover
anything, they will refund to the Reserve Bank a part of that income
stream assistance that we gave them. Well, obviously then it did not
have to apply, because it was proven by the External Aﬁditors of
Absa and by the Registrar of Banks that the total bad loans book was
something like R2 billion. Okay, the Reserve Bank’s assi:stance

funded about 1.1 or R1.2 billion of it. The special assistance that

-Sanlam had to give financed another 5 or R600 million of it and

therefore the Absa shareholders had to absorb something like .2 or
R300 million. So Absa, it cost them the 2 or R300 million extra,
which now again I was not involved in that. I think that part was
covered very well in the Davis Report, the negotiation that took place
between Absa and Bankorp or Sanlam at the time of the takeover. 1
think it is very clear. I wish ... itis so straightforﬁard, it i:s so simple if
you undefstand bookkeeping and accountéhcy, and financial
transactions. Here comes Absa and say to Bankorp, Sanlam, “I'm
interested in taking over your bank. What does it look like? Sure”.
The first thing they want, "1 Wz.ant your Balance Sheet, I want your
financial accounts, Sure, here are my financial accounts. It exists of

two books, a bad loan book and a good loan book”. Obviously Absa

qas
54
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1 would say to them, “Well, I'm interested in your good loan book, I'm
2 , — not interested in your bad loan book. Why should I buy a bad loan
3 book from you? That is losses that have been incurred by you and
41 your bad‘managernent many years ago, why should I buy that? I'mi-
s ot interested in that. ['m interested in negotiating with you to buy
6 your good loan book”. Okay, then obviouslf Bankorp had ... Sanlam
7 will say, “No, don’t worry about the bad loan book It has been
8 covered with a special facility from the Reserve Bank. Leave that out
ﬁ}9 of the account. That will be covered by the income that we earn on
10 this Reseﬁre Bank loan, on condition that you just confirm with the
11 Reserve Bank that they will be prepared to transfer that same facility |
12 | to you, that éame Loan Agreement will apply”. -Okay, Absa did that,
13 . : " the Reserve Bank confirmed so and if I should have been ... so I don't
14 know, I have no idea what happened in those negotiations, but' if I
15 should have been involved on the Absa side I would have seﬁd,

“Wonderful. I'm not interested in that income that will be earn'ed on

the Reserve Bank facility, because [ can’t use it. It must be ... it has

18 already been used, it is finished, it doesn’t exist anymore. It is there
19 to absorb the bad loan book, so leave that out of avcco.unt..‘There isno
20 ] income that I'm going to earn. As a matter of fact I have to do the
21 " . administration of that book, that is all, but otherwise forget about
22 that book. Let’s negotiate about your good book”. Thén obviously
23 Bankorp will say to Absa and the Auditors will say to Absa, “Well, in
24 the good book there are also _ba‘d loans, bad loans had accumulated
25 after 1990”, because that bad loan book we are talking about 'was;
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established in 1990, it was defined, it was ring-fenced, but then it
worked out that there were m-or'e bad loans that developed after
1990, and that is where Absa tried us to put those additional loans
also into that agreement. We said, “No way. Sorry, if you buy Absa
now ... if you buy Bankorp now, we cannot change the agreement and
the facility. It will be applied exactly the same way”. So how Absa
then negotiated with Sanlam and Bankorp to buy the good book of
Absa I can’t comment on that, but [ mean just ... I don’t know what
the word is, but...

Logic?

The logic of it all is, they must have negotiated some kind of a price

for buying Bankorp, fully taking into account the existence of the bad

book and the funding of the bad book, and the financing of the bad

book. Surely that is logical, but in any case that is what [ read in the
Davis Report and I think it is fairly .. very technically, but it is
explained there and what he says is more or less what I said now.
Yes, sure Absa did take account, but they put it aside. They said,
“That is something that has been taken care of. I'm not really
interested in that. I buy the good book and I negrotiate alprice for the
good book”. So Absa was in no way involved réélly in the lender of
last resort facility of 1990 and 1991. They took notice of it and they
knew it existed, but it was there in a separate book, the bad book and
it was funded in the bad book, and Absa did not have %o look at it.
The takeover, well okay, again if there should be any good, decent

court case, all this evidence will certainly be produced, that Absé will
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1 | say, “Well, you know okay, WeAput that book aside and we realised

2 that that was covered, but we made a bad buy, because afterwards
3 we discovered there were more bad loans that we had to take care
4 ' of”. I don’t know to what extent that was included in the price or to-
51 what extent that was-negb.‘.ciated, or Whén tl.l.éy”discovered. th;;\.f_.
6 Again I just have a newspaper cutting here to say, where Absa
7 officials said that the total losses exceeded R2 billion and that was |
8 said by a senior Absa representative at some place ... in some place.

Okay, that is you know the full story. As I say, I can tell you a lot

10 about those bad loans and so on, and Absa. Now as I say, you want to
11 find somebody. Firstly you want to know what should be claimed?
12 Now again cén I ask you this question, if I go today to any bank and I
13 : i bbrrow money from that bank for 10%, and I im-rest it at 12%, is
14 there anything wrong with that 2%, am I not allowed to earn it? Now
15 the banking institution comes to the Reserve Bank and it is gi%fen a

loan at 2%, should it not be allowed fo use that additional income

that it can earn on it? Why not? I don't know. I mean as I say, I'm

18 not a Lawyef and surely some of these Lawyers must find it funny
19 and difficult to understand if I try to explain ﬁnaﬁcial trﬁﬁsactions to
20 h them, but then they go on to their own interpretafion, and they make
21 their own stories about it, but as [ say [ sometimes must just laugh at
22 it and sometimeé I want to cry at it you know. |

23 | AdvT Madonsela : Itis four of us actually.
24 | DrCStals . Because | have grown beyond that stage now where | take it

25 personally.
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But I think the important point you made, Doctor and the point is,

even the difference that they made, 14 or 15%, wasn't for their own

benefit. It was to pay to the bad book. That was your evidence as 1

understand the commission.

That is right, that is right.

So it wasn't something they made for their benefit.

But who created the bad book, you see?

Yeah, no, but that is before then.

Who created that bad book? We were confronted with the existence

of the bad book after it happened, okay. That is the problem, that is

where the Central Bank have to take that difficulties. I spent days ...

not days. 1 épént a day, a full day in an Arbitration case, Judge Rabie

... | think it was Judge Rabie.

Yes, it was ]udge Rabie. -

In an Arbitration case befween the Cape of Good Hope Investment

Bank and the Railways Commuter Corporation, because we were ..

the Reserve Bank was attacked for not giving lender of last resort

assistance to the Cape Investment Bank and why did we dec.ide not

to give it to Cape Investment Bank? Because peo-ple like Andy Swartz

and the other one I mentioned earlier? |

David Gleason.

David Gleason did fraudulent transact ...

And Pickard. '
. and Jan Pickard did fraudulent transactionsl within the Cape

Investment Bank, so the Reserve Bank .. and it was comp}'ete]y
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1 insolvent at the time. They gave to Gleason a Joan three times the
2 total capital of the bank. It is completely against the Banks Act and
3 they submitted for 6 months false returns to the Reserve Bank. Now
4 ) sure, the Reserve Bank can use its discretion and say, “Sorry, there is’
5 no lender of last resort assistance to a bank like Ca.}.).e.iﬁ%e.s.tm;ﬁt
6 ~ Bank”. Then the Railway Commuters Corporatibn had a huge deposit
7 in Cape Investment Bank, which they lost, because Cape Investment
8 Bank was liquidated. Then they approached us in the Reserve Bank
?’ to refund them for that loan and we said, “No way. You made that
10 investment with the Cape Investment Bank, it is a bad investment
11 you made. Yeah, but you gave assistance to Trust Bank and Bankorp
12 Absa, why can’t you not give assistance to Cape: Investment Bank?”.
13 e . Okay,- then they went to Arbifration and Judge Rabie was lthe-
14 Arbitrator, and [ had to give evidence to- Judge Rabie why we did.not
15 give the loans and then the next month to the Tollgate investigation,
16 why we did give loans? You see, so it is the agony of Central Banking,
itisa "né lose” situation. If you give loans, you will be criticised by -
18 ' some people. If you do not give loans, you will be criticised by other
19 | people. So okay, you said I must give you a coﬁy of ﬂﬁs. You can
20 make a copy of this. Itis along thing.
21 | AdvT Madonsela :  But they can make copies of it straight away, so that they can give .
22 you back fhen the original, Sir.
23 | Mr C Moraitis : What I can also do, if you oud prefer, is take it away, copy it énd have
24 it delivered to your offices tomorrow morning.
25 | DrJjde Jager : Atyour offices.
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DrJ] de Jager

Mr B Dhlamini
Mr C Moraitis
Mr B Dhiamini
Mr C Moraitis
DrJ] de Jager

Mr C Moraitis

Adv T Madonsela ;

Mr C Moraitis

Pr C Stals

Mr C Moraitis

Dr C Stals

Mr B Dhlamini

Mr C Moraitis

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Mr C Moraitis
Dr C Stals
Mr C Moraitis

Dr]] de .)ager-

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

"+ Do you have it? You should have it, but, but we can make a copy of

it.

No, we can do it, yes.

Okay, itisup to yoﬁ.

Yes, we have got a facility.

Alright.

Because there is more in the file and ...

Do you want a copy of it now?

Are they able to do it immediately and the opinion?

Let me take it and [ undertake you will have it tomorrow morning, I
will have this delivered to your offices tomorrow morning.
Yeah, but then you must just discuss this with .. [ just want to go to
this one. |

That is why I wanted (indistinct).

Okay, you see [ have first the Loan Agreement.

Yes. ~ -

It is all in Afrikaans, it is an Afrikaans document.

Yeah, you see that is what ...

But don't we don't mind (indistinct).

No, [ know, but yoﬁ have the misfortune ..

But somebody will have to translate to English.

No, no, they will do it themselves.

Will you be able to do it?

We have Lawyers here who are fully Afrikaans speaking, yes.

I say this with a little bit of reservation.
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1 | AdvT Madonsela : Yes?
2 | DrC Stals My one deduction was that Davis and his group cou}d not read
3 Afrikaans, because I think they never read this agreement.
41 M r .C Moraitis  : Doyouwant the (indistinct) now?
5 | br C Stals Just (indistinct} let me go through this now, let us ﬁz;sf gothrough
6 this. In this book you have the full Loan Agreement and as I told you,
7 here it is, more than 60 pages. There is the Iis’; of the bad book, every
8 single-loan that Bankorp and its predecessors made, and we agreed
to in 1990 these are the bad loans and this is what you will never get
10 back again, you will never recover it and this is what somehow or
11 other we must put right in your books.
12 | Adv T Madonsela : Andthe agreemen;c is dated 19917
-13 | DrCStals Yeah, itis in this agreement. -
14 | Mr C Moraitis The agreement?
15 | Dr}j de Jager Daté.
16 | Adv'T Madonsela : Whatis the date that you have?
Dr C Stals Yeah, the date of this agreement I think is ... somewhere you will go
18 back into it. I think it was ...
19 | Mr C Moraitis Let me have a look at the last page.
20 | DrC Stals It started ... |
21 | Adv T Madonsela : Okay. .
22 | DrCStals It started 37 of August 1990.
23 | Adv'T Madonsela : Right. [ think Doctor Stals, on behalf of my team we thank you so
24 much for taking us on to that historical road, which then gives us a
25 sens;e of where everything started and why things were done like
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Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Mr C Moraitis

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Mr C Moraitis

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Mr C Moraitis ' :

Adv T Madonsela ;

Dr C Stals

that in the past, which then leads us to 1997. So before I ask any
specific questions about the historical information you have shared
with us, I would just want to .. when did you leave the Reserve Bank,
Sir?

7% of August 1999.

Okay. |

Okay, sorry, in this ﬁlg I also have a copy of the agreement entered
into between the Reserve Bank and Absa at the time of the takeover.
Pardon?

In this file I also have a copy of the agreement that was entered into
between the Reserve Bank ...

Then you are a lifesav_er, because we have been just asking for these
two agreements.

It is a public document, which is ... it is the Tollgate thing, we must
give it to.

Yeah;but I think you asked for this one.

Pardon? |

It is the Tollgate Enquiry, so we must give you this document. Itisa
public document, so ... |

No, thank you, because none of the other actérs seemed to know
where to find that, so, but we ...

Yeah.

Yeah, but it is such a big thing.

Yeah, it is (indistinct].

Okay, there are three agreements in this book. You can (indistinct).

TRANSCRIBUS €C - www.transeribus,co.za » transcribus@gmail.com - (Rindi) 082 323 7937 - (Office} 0B7 150 8703

1 A

;



Meeting held between the Public Protector Sputh Africa & Dr Chris Stals

B September 2016

(64
63

1 | MrC Moraitis ] will have them delivered to you tomorrow morning.
2 | DrCStals And this is that Ginsburg thing thﬁt I referred to.
3 | Adv T Madonsela :- Plus okay, documents.
4 .Dr.CHStais I'm sorry, I can give you (indistinct).
5 | Mr C Moraitis . -Can we mark it for your. a&énﬁoﬁ \.fvl.l.en I .dé.}ivél.* .it?
6 | DrC Stals I think this is very important. Have you read the Heath Report?
7 | Adv T Madonsela : Uhm (positive).
8 | DrCStals It starts off by saying:

9 | “The Special Investigation Unit has decided not to institute any
10 litigation following its investigation into the financial aid
11 package provided by the Souvu;h African Reserve Bank to Bankorp,
12 where investigation into the Validlity” .. and so and so and so.

13 | Adv T Madonsela : Right.

14 | DrC Stals Yeah and it more or less comes to exactly the same conclusion as

15 (indistinct). )

16 | Adv T Madonsela : Canwe geta copy of the Heath Report, because we iﬁt‘erviewed Judge
ey Heath, but he didn’t have a copy of his report at the time we

18 interviewed him?

19 1 brcC Stals Okay, this ... okay, then the Davis Report you ilave?

20 | AdvT Madonsela : The Davis Report we have? |

21 | MrBDhlamini : Yeah,wedo.
22 | AdvT Madonsela : [think we do, yeah.

23 | Dr }j de Jager We gave you a copy in 2011.1 think.' It is partof our ... -

24 | Adv T Madonsela : Yes.

25 | Mr B Dhlamini Yeah, those we did receive.
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Adv T Madonsela :

Mr C Moraitis

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Mr C Moraitis

Dr C Stals

Mr C Moraitis

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

DrJ] de Jager

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Mr C Moraitis

Adv T Madonsela :

Mr B Dhlamini
Mr C Moraitis

MrB Dhlamini

Dr C Stals

Yeah, the Heath Report nobody seems to have had, although I had
extensive discussions with Judge Heath on the report.

It is not his report. It is the statement that he issuedon a lot of
(indistinct).

Yeah, he never issued a report.

ﬁo, because the report was given to the Presider;t and when we tried.
to get that ...

That is right.

He never issued it.

Yes, that is right.

Okay, but we would love to see the statement.

Be_cai;se of disputes between the Treasury and the Government, and
Heath. |
Yeah, because all of the SIU reports are given to the President and he
has no duty under the léw to share them with anyone.

That is the Davis Report. |

Yeah, it is the Davis Report.

Although we could subpoena those reports from the President.

Yeah, you could. |

We could, in termé of the Public Protector Act.

Yes.

They would never find them at his (indistinct).

Because 1I tried to look for them in'the SIU, but I couldn’t find, but I
think you know

Can I offer you another document? “Submission by Dr CL Stals,
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1 Governor of the South African Reserve Bank, with a Section 417
2 Commission of Enguiry into the affairs of Tollgate Holdings”.

3 | Adv T Madonsela : Okay. Oh, that would be great because incidentally ... I don’t know if

4 you have all read “Dangerous” ... what is that book? Julian Askih’s i
5 book, “Dangerous” what?
6 | DrCStals : You know I know I'm talking a lot. I know I'm talking a lot, but ...

7 | Adv T Madonsela : Yes. No, no, but I'm saying they blame yow. I mean saying from that

8 book it then ...
39 Dr C Stals . Yeah, but that is where the letter was published, that you know he
10 said I said I had nothing to do with the bank of loans initially and
11 ‘ ' then ... |

12 | Adv T Madonsela : Yeah, “Dangerous Deceit”.
13 | DrC Stals . ¢ And then he publishes something in the end, a letter which [ signed, |
14 assistance to Merca Bank. .

15 | AdvT Madonsela : Right. Well, [ just it would be interesting then to hear your side of

16 the story, this is his side.

Dr C Stals :  You know what, [ will tell you my experience. I can start with a lot of
18 | people, I can mention them all to you and I will start with Martin
19 Welz of Noseweek and so on. What happens is ... | |

20 | Adv T Madonseia : Sothisis..is the statement ...

21 | DrCStals .- What happens is, somebody tells a story and then somebody else
22 tells a story, and then the third person makes his own story and it
23 goes on and on, and in thé end it becomes a mythical illusion for '
24 somebody. Then the mythical illusion becomes a mythical dream for
25 somebody and theﬁ somebody tries to make the mythical dream a
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Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Dr Jj de Jager

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

mythical reality, and then you run into problems, because if it is
mythical it can't be reality and it goes on and on.

Right, thank you.

This is the kinds of thing that happen and you know it is a narrative
approach of analysis, and I'm sorry to warn you, you are relying a
hell of a lot on a narrative analysis.

Sorry, Sir, I have some specific questions, Sir. Some you have
answered, some you have not. '

Okay, CIEX.

I'm going to ask because youwere still Governor ...

Okay, that is very easy ...

She will ask.

.. in 1999, the first CIEX Report was submitted in 1998." What 'was

your contact with the CIEX author, Michael Oatley? Did you have any

conérél-ct with Michael Oatley?

No, no knowledge of him, never met him.

No contact. You were not iﬁvolved in any way in the Cabinet
grouping that was dealing with him, that was meeting with him?

No, I didn’t attend Cabinet meetings myself. I'm a Gov.ernor of the
Reserve Bank (indistinct).

Did you get the report that Michael Oatley submitted in 19987

No, never heard of it, nothing.

At the time when you commissioned Judge Davis relating to this
matter, what was the basis of you looking into that or when ... with

the Reserve Bank?
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1 | DrC Stals I was never involved. I never knew anything about the CIEX Report

2 in my lifetime, in my lifetime in the Reserve Bank.

3 | Adv T Madonsela ;: Yes, so what triggered the Davis investigation?

4 | Drjj deJager : What triggered the Davis investigation?

5 | brCStals 1don’t know, I don't know. That was after ] fetired as Governor.

6 | Dr]jdeJager That was Governor Mboweni.

7 | Mr C Moraitis That is Mboweni.

8 | AdvT Madonsela : Okay, Davis .. yes, no, you are right, Davis.

Dr]] de Jager Yeah, Mboweni is ... |
10 | AdvT Madonsela : Oh, yes.
11 | Dr C Stals It happened after I ... Mboweni never discussed it with me.
12 | Adv T Madonsela : And then Heath.
13 | DrCStals Heath?
14 | AdvT Madomsela : The Heath reportis dated ...
15 | DrCStals Heath was about 1998 or something like that.
16 A&V L Tshiwalule : Heath'was 1998.
Adv T Madonsela : 1998 and of course you were presented with it?

18 | DrCStals No.
19 | Adv T Madonsela : You were not presented with the Heath Report?
20 | DrC Stals No, I did get a copy of that statement that he issﬁed to the press. It
21 was the statement issued to the press.- -
22 | AdvT Madonsela : Yes. Alright, I just wanted to know did you have .. so you had
23! nothing to do with any decision that was made regarding how to deal
24 with this matter after 19977 |
25 | brCStals No. [ will give you a copy of this. Thatis the first time 1 ever heard
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Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr CStals

Adv T Madonsela :

about the CIEX Report.

That was 19997

Yeah, exactly. Seven days after I .retired from the Reserve Bank I
read it in a newspaper. That was ... and that was aBout the only thing
I héard about it until recently again. I have never .. I didn't know
about the existence of the CIEX Report and I really don’t .. I was
never ... it was never discussed with me, it was never ...

And they never spoke to you as the Governor of the Reserve Bank
when they were engaging him to look into this matter?

No.l No, | have never met any of those people, I have never known
them. It was very funny to read that report in the newspaper, but in
any case that is the only ... that is ... and that happened as I said about
a week after [ retired from the bank incidentally, but then even after
that I was never involved and I never heard about it, until recently, in
the exchange of letters between you and the Reserve Bank on your
disputes and so on, I learnt about the CIEX Report. 1 asked the

Reserve Bank, “What is the CIEX Report? I don’t know about it”. I

have never had anything to do with it and whoever did that report |

investigation didn’t have the decency to even mention it to the
Reserve Bank, as far as I know, that they were' .doing that research
and that they were doing that, and the Government of South Africa
didn't have the decency to tell the Reserve Bank that they were doing
this investigation. I never heard of it again.

Right, thank you, that is duly nbted. [ just want now to confirm the

timelines. That agreement that you have with Bankorp is it an
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1 agreement between the Reserve Bank and Bankorp?
2 | DrCStals . Yes.

3 | Adv T Madonsela : And what timeline is that, Sir?

4 | DrCStals : What?

5 | Mr C Moraitis ;  The date.

6 | Adv T Madonsela : Did you say 1991 oris it 19907

7 | Mr C Moraitis . I'm going to give you the date.
8 | DrC Stals : No,itis 1‘_391‘sometime, It was signed finally in 19 ...
Mr € Moraitis :  September 1991.
10 | DrC Stals | . 1think some of the basic things were agreed long before thét and that
11 is attached to the agreement. The%e is a letter between the Reserve
12 Bank and Baﬁkorp to confirm “That we are prepared to investigate
13 ‘ ' _ this aﬁd see what we can do for you”, more or less and so on and so |
14 and so, so but the agreement is ... the daté of that agreement is ... |

15 | Adv T Madonsela : So that is an agreement between only two parties?
16 | DrC Stals . Yeah.= Nobody else was involved. Well, the Minister was fully

informed about it and many discussions took place with the Minister

18 about it, but he wasn’t involved in the agreement.

19 | Adv T Madonsela : Okay and then the agreement was, you would ... és the Iéhder of last
20 resort?

21 | DrCStals .- That.is right.

22 | Adv T Madonsela : Soyouhavea leﬁd,er of last resort agreement? A

23 Df'c Stals : Yes. v

24 | Adv T Madonsela : And then you said that was for R1.5 billion?

25 | DrCStals . Yeah, [ think so. Tt ended up as 1.5 billion in any case.
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Mr C Moraitis

Dr C Stals

Mr C Moraitis

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Mr C Moraitis
Mr B Dhlamini

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madoensela :

Pr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

The first capital was a billion.

: It was first a billion and then ...

It says, “Die tweede bedrag 500 miljoen”, so 500.

So it was initially a billion ...

Yeah, so it is 1 billion plus then 500 million.

.. 1 million. Then plus?

500.

Plus 500 million.

Yeah, but it really started off as R200 million I think in the 1985 ...
Okay, received it?

And it was gradually raised I think to 1 billion and then the las'g
latest one wés a consolidation that increased to 1.5 billion and this
agreement is about at 1.5 billion. - This is really a consolidationfof all
fhe transactions, everything that happened.

So this is what happened in 19917

Yeah™ -

This was the agreement and then you are saying .. I just want to
confirm, the 1.5 billion meant you credited the account of Bankorp?
Bankorp. |

Right, so executed through ...

And we debited loans and advances to banking institutions.

Correct, so then they find themselves with a balance of 1.5 billion?
Yeah.

Then you were the custodian of Government bonds at the time, am [

correct?
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Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Mr C Moraitis

Adv T Madonsela

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :
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1 | DrCStals We insisted on it, yes, as collateral.

2 | Mr C Moraitis They took it as security.

3 | DrC Stals We took it as security, collateral for the loan, cover for the loan.

4 | AdvT Madonsela : Yes I’mv just trying to check that apart from using the loans as”

5 | | .securitf or as coI]a.teraL you were éiso .br fhét 1s Treas.ur.y’s

6 submission.

7 | DrC Stals Treasury.

8 | Adv T Madonsela : Treasury's submission says you were the custodians of those

3 Government bonas. So instead of Government issuing its bonds,

10 those bonds would have still been issued. In other words, you were
11 wearing your head as the Reserve Bank and also wearing Treasury's
12 hat, because during those days they said ...
13 | DrCStals No, Treasury was not involved in any way.
14 | AdvT Madonsela : Yes, thatis what they say. That is exactly what they say.
15 | Mr C Moraitis

I think let’s just clarify, did you ... Doctor Stals, did you issue ...

Yeah, exactly, Treasury was not involved in any way. |
Because they are saying you had the power to issue those
Government bonds yourself?

No.

No.

Not true. That is what they are saying.-- -

The Reserve Bank never has ... not in my history. The Reserve Bank
has no power to issue Government bonds (indistinct).

Well, that is what Government said. Treasury’s submission was that

the fragmentation of the Reserve Bank and Treasury is a recent
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thing. During that time you would have been both the conceivers of
this transaction and the ones executing it, because they had ceded
the power to manage Government bonds fo the Treasufy. That is

what they have submitted.

Dr C Stals No, | don’t understand exactly what they mean, but look, it is fairly
straightforward. The Treasury issues Government bonds to get
money to finance the budget.

Adv T Madonsela : Yes, they said that, but they did that through the Reserve Bank ...

Dr C Stals Yeah, they oﬁen doit. /::f

Adv T Madonsela : .. because they didn’t have the capacity to do that in those
(indistinct). So they said it was Treasury’s bonds, but they were
managed at-South African Reserve Bank.

Dr C Stals No, managed ...

Adv T Madonsela : We want to .. because that would have meant then you made the
transaction, you also executed it yourselves. It wasn’t Treasury that
issued 'those‘bonds. It was yourselves.

Dr C Stals Treasury issued the bonds, it is Government bonds. We can't ... the i

Mr C Moraitis

Reserve Bank can't issue Government bonds. There is no way.
I think Dr Stals’ evidence to you is that the Reserve Bank never

issued the Treasury bonds.

Adv T Madonsela : Okay. 1think we have to go back to Treasury on that one, because
Treasury ..
Dr C Stals No, it is quite possible that the Reserve Bank approached Treasury

and said, “You know, Bankorp needs the bonds”, not the Reserve

Bank.

\
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Adv T Madonsela : Yeah, that would be then the evidence we heard. That would have
2 the split in terms of a fragmented decision making, where you have
3 Treasury there, yoﬁ have SARB and then you have Bankorp?
| 4 | DrCStals Yeah.
5 | AdvT Madensela : And then you are having a deél with Bankorp, but would still get you
6 know Treasury to issue the bonds?
7 | Mr C Moraitis Bankorp got Tréasury to issue the bonds, yeah.
8 | Adv T Madonsela : That would be your submission?
Dr C Stals Yeah, Treasury to issue the ...
10 | Adv T Madonsela : With their submission they said no, because they had sort of like
11 signed their like Power of Attorney or-something?
12 | DrC Stals Yeah.
13. Adv T Madonsela_: You had-access to the bonds. You made the .decision to do if, you
14 executed your own decision? | |
15 i Mr C Moraitis So what they are saying Doctor Stals, if that is correct, is that you
16 actuallyissued the Treasury bonds on Behalf of Treasury ...
ﬁl Dx C Stals No, but we can’t do that.
18 | Adv T Madonsela : Yes.
19 | Mr C Moraitis No, but that is exactly correct. That is the evidenée, Dr Sféls is saying
20 no.
21 | Dr CStals We don’t have a right to do that. We can say to Treasury ..
22 | Adv T Madounsela : No, no, they are saying now it fs different Sir, that they issue the
23 bonds, but they are saying when this happened in 1991, it.. ' |
24 | DrCStals Yeah. No, itis quite possible. 1thinkitis true thatlth'e
25 | Adv T Madonsela ; The current separation of powers (indistinct}?
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Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

DrC Stals

Adv T Madonsela :
Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :
Dr C Stals

Dr]J] de Jager

Adv T Madonsela ;

Dr C Stals
Adv T Madonsela :
Dr C Stals

DrJ] de Jager

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

.. that the Reserve Bank approached the Treasury and said, “Now
listen, with this final deal we will make ... we are rnaking the loan to
Bankorp and Bankorp must buy Government bonds. Should they go
to the marketplace or should they approach you?”.

And where would the Government bonds be sitting?

Well, the Government bonds were issued to Bankorp and Bankorp
ceded them and deposited them in the Reserve Bank.

No, I'm saying at the time they had to be iésued who signs them?
Who? | ; )
Who signs them, the issued (indistinct}?

Would finance them?

Who would sign .. I mean that is a .. who would sign on behalf of
Government?

Like they signed them like it was ... yeah, who signs them?

I don't know who signs the Government bonds when they issue
Goveinment bonds. It must be somebody in the Treasury.

So you are saying it wasn’t. 1 just think we just wanted to confirm
that. Either we misunderstood them ...

I mean it is the same person who signs all Governmen;c bonds that
they issue.

It will be a debt instrument that has to be signed by (indistinct).

Yeah, it is a Government bond,' a negotiable Government bond that
you ... ' 1

You see from their side they said now they do it, but at the time - for

whatever reason - that authority had been delegated to the Reserve
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1 ~ Bank, but I think all of that can be confirmed.
2 | DrCStals . Yeah, as ! said the normal procedure would have been that the
3 , Reserve Bank would approach the Treasury and say,r"N-ow listen,
4 1 these people must invest R15 billion on Government bonds with us.
5 Should they go to the marketplace and buy it, or should they come to
6 you and you will issue it to them?”. The Treasury must have said,
7 “We will issue it to them. Wonderful, we need the money, so We will
-8 issue Government bonds to Bankorp”. Bankorp then had to bring |
’w9 those Government bond pieces of paper to the Reserve Bank, sign a
10 transfer certificate and deposit them with the Reserve Bank to serve
11 - as security for the loan.

12 | Adv T Madonsela : Yes, right. Other than just crediting the account, from your side what

13 | - o - would this reﬂecf, this 1.5 billion? . -

14 : DrC Sfals . Well, as I say we credit the account of Bankorp for R1.5 billion and
15 | we debit loans and advances to banking institutions for R1.5 billion.
16 That is a norm, if"you give a loan ... if the Reserve Bank gives aloan to

anybody, that is the procedure you will follow, you credit the account
18 of the borrower, you debit loans and advances.

19 Adv T Madonsela : So then you debit it?

20 | DrCStals -t The debit entry stays on the books of the Reser‘}é Bank as an asset,
21 - the credit entry is used by the borrower. - |

92 | Adv T Madonsela : I think that is the part that I wanted to understand, because you then
23 said okay ..

24 | DrCStals : Itisimportant, yes.

25 | Adv T Madonsela : So at this stage you have ... your book is reserving ... is showing that 8
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Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals
Dr J] de Jager .

Dr C Stals

you are owed 1.57

Sure. |

Theirs is showing a credit of that, but it is showing that that is a
credit of a loan in the same way as my overdraft would show that?
Yes, yes, sure.

So it is still ... on their side it is stiil showing as a loan of some sort,
although it still shows creditor Bankorp. Now then you ... then you
have the bonds to secure it?

Yes.

Or what we find ...

I suppose the next logical step there was to debit the Trust Bank
account and credit the Treasury account. We transferred the money
from..:

So did that happen?

Uhm?

Did that happen Sir?

Théy can’t both have them.

I'm asking did it happen then that wheﬁ they_got the_ bonds from

Government for 1.5, Government was paid the money that...

: 'Sure, the R1.5 billion, sure.

The 1.5 was paid for them?
Sure, they were paid for the money by the Reserve Bank.

You see, otherwise ...
The Reserve Bank transferred the funds from the Bankorp account to

the Treasury account, the Exchequer account.
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1 | Drjj de Jager - You see in terms of the South African Reserve Bank Act one of the
2 assets that you can actually .. which is a liquid asset, because you
3 need liquid assets as security. One of the liquid assets that actually
4 ‘ then qualifies as an asset thét you can take as a liquid asset, that you-
5 can take as sécurity or as a collateral, is Governmént boﬁds. Soitisa
6 liquid asset, the reason for that being that it is easily converted into
7 cash and the Government is the counterparty. So in other words, itis
8 not a loan which has got a hug.e credit risk, because you have got the

Government. So what actually happens then is, Government sits

10 here, it needs to fund a shortage for the deficit on its budget, it needs
11 to fund that. So what it does is, to lend ... to borrow money from the
12 general public, it issues paper, debt instruments that are issued ...

13 | Adv T Madonsela : Which we understand, but that would mean they actually normally
14 issue those and they advertise to us, the general public ...
15 | DrCStals : And the Reserve Bank.

16 | AdvT Madonsela : I'm juSvt'saying the Government bonds, they do that.

Dr C Stals . Very often they are issued to the Reserve Bank.

18 | AdvT Madonsela : But the difference between the loan (indistinct} scenario explaining,

19 is that I take my own private money and I buy Government bonds.
20 - They regularly advertise them, anyone from the street can buy them?
21 | Dr}j deJager .- Correct, yeah.

22 | Adv T Madonsela : Butthis is unusual, because. ...
23 | PrC Stals . No, there is nothing unusual about it.

24 | AdvT Madonsela : No, I'm saying from where I'm standing, because as you are

25 explaining, Doctor De Jager ... | fa
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Dr.C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Dr}J] de Jager

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela ;

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals
Mr C Moraitis

Pr ]] de Jager

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals
Mr C Moraitis
Dr C Stals

Dr]) de Jager

Government bonds?

Yeah, but that is what I have explained.

.. you would then pay from your own pocket to buy those

Yeah, not necessarily. You can pay from your overdraft to get it

You can go to the bank and you can get an overdraft, and you can
take your money and you can then go and buy the bonds.

Yeah.

Yes, but it would be your money?

Yes.

Whether you got it from a loan from your friend or you got it from
the bank, it would not be a loan by the same person to buy from the
same person?

No. -

No, no, no, but you don’t buy (indistinct). -

We understand, sorry.

I'm saying the normal scenario is the loan comes from ... it is either
my money that I already have or I get it from him, or I get it from my
bank in order to buy Government bonds, in the same way as I can
invest in any other thing, but here you have a scenario where
Government is loaning me money.

No, not Government.

It is not Government.

Government was never in the picture in loaning you money.

No, no, Government is not in the picture, because Government is

selling off its bonds to a bank that has actually got the money from
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the Reserve Bank.

Mr C Moraitis The Reserve Bank is not Government.

Dr JJ de Jager . - The Reserve Bank has granted a loan to this bank, so the bank goes
and it buys, takes the money that it received as a loan and he goes’
and buys from Government its paper. | -

Adv T Madonsela : Okay.

Dr C Stals What is the difference between you borrowing money from your
bank to buy Government bonds and Bankorp borrowing money from
the bank to buy bonds? |

Adv T Madonsela : Okay, so we have now ... okay, we have Government, we have the
Reserve Bank, we have Bankorp?

Dy C Stals Yes.

Adv T Madonsela : So Bankorp is taking money from the Reserve Bank to buy here? B

DrC Stalé. Borfowing, yeah. | |

Adv T Madonsela : Okay, but then that means there is still a debt owed to thE‘RESEIlVE
Bank of R1.5 billion?

Dr Jj de Jager fes.

Mr C Moraitis | Correct.

Adv T Madonsela ; So thatis where I was goingto ...

Dr C Stals ' Yeah, but that is not right.

Adv T Madonsela : .. because there is still that amount that-you are owing. So the one

person then that we will say you are not owing is Government,
because you have taken the money from the Reserve Bank and given
Government instantly the same amount that you had advanced to it,

isn’tit, the 1,5 billion?
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Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals -

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Drj] de Jager

Adv T Madonsela :

Yeah, but there is nothing wrong with that, but your picture is not
right. 1 mean that is where part of your problem is. You say there is
Government and you say there is the Reserve Bank, and you say the
bank.

The bank, yes.

Now okay, the first part of :che transaction is, Reserve Bank gives a
loan to Bankorp.

Yes, 1.5 billion.

1.5, 50...

Meaning then this one is 1.5 billion in debt to this one.

So one (indistinct).

Yes.

Bankorp takes the money and buys bonds from the Government.
Right, which means then Bankorp has nol money, but it owes the
Reserve Bank money? |

No, they have money. They have an overdraft facility that they can

use as money. Now Bankorp comes to the Reserve Bank and says,

“Listen, that R1.5 billion that I have on deposit with you, please pay it
to the Government on my behalf”, not on the Reserve Baﬁk’s behalf.
No, no, yes, it is on their own behalf.

Yeah, so you see this is not right.

In the same way he was explained to me that, so the .. no. Okay,

~ okay, okay. Ithink we are on the same page ..

Yes, we are.

... because you have said the Reserve Bank at the moment is like any

- 80
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1 other lender?
2 | DrC Stals Bank, ves.
3 | Adv T Madonsela : Butitis justa lender of last resort?
4 | Mr C Moraitis Correct.
5 | Dr C Stals Yeah,
6 | Adv T Madonsela : So they have given you 1.5 billion, you bought from Government and
7 you paid Government, but what then we have is that on yoﬁr debit
side, on the bank’s debit side you are still owing 1.5 billion?
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Mr C Moraitis

- Mr B Dhlamini

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

- Adv T Madonsela :

Mr B Dhlamini

Dr JJ de Jager

Adv T Madonsela : .

DrJj de Jager

Correct.

Yes.

Is that okay, Sir?

Yeah, yeah, it is fine.

If yoﬁ are owing 1.5 billion, then he said that the agreement was ‘Fhat-
.. having borrowed money from my bank - if 1 like that scenario — to
pay you, so | have paid you in full immediately, but because I bought
bonds from you ... | mean bought from you, then the bonds will trade
and I will get interest. Now I want to know, you were saying they
were éupposed to feed off the 2% interest?

Yes.

Remember thatis the interest that ...

From the 16 ... you said there was ...

That should pay your bank. You are paying your bank. You see,
maybe if [ just ... there is just one little thing in here that makes it a
little bit more complicated. You can give me (indistinct) or 1 can talk

from here,
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Adv T Madonseia :
Dr J] de Jager

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr ] de Jager

Adv T Madonsela :

Mr C Moraitis

Adv T Madonsela :

DrJ] de Jager

‘Adv T Madonsela :

Dr]] de Jager
Dr C Stals
DrJJ de Jager

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals
Dr J] de Jager

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madoensela :

Mr C Moraitis

Okay, buf can | finish my thoughts on that, then you address me, Sir?
Alright, sure.

We are on the same page. My understanding is that then the capital
Joan that ... so now they are sitting here, itis 1991. The capital ...

Itis 1.5 billion.

Yes, loan is 1.5 billion.

Yeah.

This is as at 1991, whatever the date.

Okay, yeah.

Then you said in your submission Sir, over 5 years they were going
to pay 2%, in other words ... and that 2% they were goir_1g to get from
the 16%?

Yes.

They are going to get from?

The 16%.

Yes, evéry year, yes.

Okay, I just want to clarify that. If then I'm paying 2% of bonds that
are worth ... interest that I'm earning .. okay,r my bonds are now
mine, they are my property because I bought them? |

Yes.

Your return is 16.

So they earn the 16%.

But you understand the ... you gave me a loan, I bought, so they are
mine, I'm paying only 2%?

Yes.
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Mr C Moraitis

Adv T Madonsela : So how does 2% become 1.5 billion in 5 years?

Dr I] de Jager No, no.

Dr C Stals That has got nothing to do with (indistinct).

| Mr C Moraitis No, no, no.

Adv'T Madonsela ;: Well, obviously it can't even be 1.5 billion, because it should be
1.5 billion plus 2% and then compound interest on 2%, be;:ause you
still owe the ...

Mr C Moraitis No. The firm submission of Dr Stals is this, they borrow 1.5 billion,
they pay you 2% interest. They pay the bank every year 2%. Itisnot
compounded.

Adv T Madonsela : Okéy, but ...

Mr C Moraitis And then they get the 16%, so they keep 14% every year, so
1.5 billion stays 1.5 billion. -

Adv T Madonsela : But that is what I'm asking you. The réaso_n I'm asking is that ilAC all
then I have been paying is the .. paying you 2% of what I'm getting
from my 1.5 billion worth of ...

Mr C Moraitis I will answer your question. At the end they paid the 1.5 billion back.

DrJ] de Jager Back, by the bonds that matured. Remember Government needs to ..

Adv T Madonsela : Okay, so the bonds ... when did the bonds maturel? BecaL;se that was
the partthatI.. |

Mr C Moraitis :-~ 5-year bonds, yes.

Dr J] de Jager 5 years.

Adv T Madonsela :

But that was the part that had .. confusing and I was confused about,
about you paying, yeah, 2% ...

1996 they paid it back.
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Dr]] de Jager

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr]] de Jager

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr]J de Jager
Mr C Moraitis
Dr C Stals

DrJJ de Jager

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Mr C Moraitis

i)r JJ de Jager

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr J] de Jager

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Dr J] de Jager

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr J] de Jager

~ of 1.5 billion. So it is loaned by the Reserve Bank, sold and that you

Yeah, you have bought ...

Okay, so 1996 you have bought bonds?

Yeah, finance.

So are you then saying the bonds were then given back to the
Reserve Bank?

No.

No.

The bonds were sold ...

Sold and the money returned was given to the bank.

And the money was paid back to the Reserve Bank.

So we will find the Reserve Bank now being credited?

Yes. |

Yes, with the proceeds of the bonds.

With 1.5 billion? .

Yeah.

Because nobody has given that evidence ever that the 1.5 billion was
paid. |

It should be in the books of the bank.

That is in the books.

So basically then it was ... okay ...

So remember the b(_)nds took 5 years to mature. Okay, so when the
bonds ... just you know if ... so here is the loan - you spoke about the

loan in the beginning - which is totally correct. So you have this loan

understand as well, so it is loaned to them at 2%. So the capital sum
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I is 1.5 billion.

2 Adv'i‘ Madonsela : Yes.
3 | brJjjdejager For security for the capital sum the Reserve Bank needs to get
4 se;urity. So the security of those bonds that they buy, so they buy ..”
5 ‘— Mth the loan they have they buy the boﬁ.ds. They cede the bonds to
6 the Reserve Bank. They have also 5 years, After 5 years the capital
7 sum néeds to be repaid. What happens? Government repays the
8 bonds and that is in the report(?).

39 Adv T Madonsela : So we want that amount ... that money, because that is the same thing

10 as your bond ...

11 | bBr]JjdeJager No, but that has been repaid.

12 | Adv T Madonsela : Yeah, but we want evidence that that money was repaid, because at

13| the moment....

14 | Mr C Moraitis Okay.

15 | DrC Stals No, but send your Auditors to the Reserve Bank.

16 | Adv T Madonsela : Because until today no person has ever said the 1.5 billion was

37 repaid.

18 | Dr C Stals Ag, that is nonsense. There is no way that that can be ...

19 | Mr C Moraitis Socanl .. |

20 | AdvT Madonsela : Nobody has ever said that, because we were si&ing then with the

21 Reserve Bank ...

22 i DrCStals No, it didn’t go to the budget, of course.

23 | AdvT Médonsela . ... with everyone and said .. when we were asking the guestion,

24 “Where are the bonds now?” ...

25 | DrJ} deJager The bonds had been repaid. ‘ J
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Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela ;

Mr C Moraitis

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

AdvT Madonsela :

Dr € Stals

Adv T Madonasela :

Dr C Stals

Dr Jj de Jager

Mr C Moraitis

Dr € Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

I was just .. that was the question we were asking, because the
answer should have been, “They are in the open market” ...

But what does the Government do ...

.. "“because we sold them, we got.the money and we paid back the
loan”.

Yeah.

Nobody, nobody from Treasury or the Reserve Bank ...

So Dr Stals ...

No, but Treasury is not in the picture at all.

No, but I'm saying the Reserve Bank people themselves have never |
given evidence that says that they took this asset now that they
bought witﬁ the loan money, sold it and then paid back the money in
full:

It is not right. No, thatis notright.

They have never said that.

No, they gave the assets, the Government bonds, the pieces of
paper ...

Yes.

.. theoretically they gave it back to Absa and say ...

Then you can sell it? | |

.. “You get the money”.

“And give it to us”.

And pay back the loan.

Whatever, “You get the money and you pay back the loan”.

For me the consequence ...
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1 | DrCStals And so in the books of the Reserve Bank they must show the
2 repayrﬁent they received from Absa.
3 | AdvT Madonéeia . Yeah, that is the only thing that we need, because the concept is not
4 rocket science. o
5 | DrCstals But the Auditors of the. bank should be able to confirm that to you.
6 | AdvT Madonsela : The same thing is, I borrowed money from the bank, I bought my
7 house. Maybe after paying the bank, I then sell the house and pay the
8 bank.
Mr C Moraitis But can I try and resolve it on this basis?
10 | DrCStals That is very reasonable. [ have no problem with that.
11 | AdvT Madonsela : But we just ... | have not found anybody Sir, who has said this money
12 was paid and on what date was it paid?
13 | Mr C Moraitis Can 1 try and resolve it on this basis? Qkay, Dr Stals has given ‘the
14 evidence that it was repaid. He was the Governor at the time. |
15 | Adv T Madonsela : Yeah, because that would help.
16 | Mr C Moraitis So you are looking for the physical evidence from the Auditors that
the 1.5 billion was received by the Reserve Bank?
18 | AdvT Madonsela : Yes. Yeah, because then this horror would not have .. do you
19 understand Sir, that this investigation WOuid not :have even
20 proceeded then? Because if this money was pa:id in 5 years .. the
21 * money was given in 1991. So if you are saying it was paid within 5
22 years, it would have been paid in 19967
23 DrCStals It was paid in 19 ... the date is available.
24 | Adv T Madonsela : Pardon?
25 | Dr CStals The date is available. The exact date when it was paid is available.
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Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals
Mr B Dhlamini

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

DrcC Stals_

Adv T Madonsela :

Pr C Stals

DrJj de Jager

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Yes.

It was in 1995.

Okay, so it was paid in 19957

As a matter of fact ...

Cal;l I also just ask, so ...

Sorry, I just want to make sure that you understand. The loans did
not all mature on the final day.

Oh yeah, because they were not given on the same day?

Yeah.

You did indicate that.

So some of those Government bonds matured two months before the
time.

I do understand. You did indicate thgt the 1.5 was a cons-oligi_ated
amount? .

Yeah, and then Absa came to the Reserve Bank and said, “Now listen,
we are not going to buy new bonds to replace those that mature,
because we are getting the money from the Treasury now, two
months before the time” and we said, “Okay, pla_tce it on deposit with
the Reserve Bank and we will pay you 16% until the ﬁnai date”.

As if the bonds wére (indistinct), |

To Absa now? |

So the money came from Absa in instalments and the Reserve Bank
should be able to give you all those dates.

Doctor Stals, I wanted to find out was it Absa that paid or was it

Bankorp, because the original loan was ...
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1 | DrCStals No, no, Bankorp didn't exist anymore.
2 | Adv L Tshiwaklile : Itisgone.
3 | Mr C Moraitis Bankorp .. remember, Absa took it over, so Absa paid it back in 1995,
4 is what Dr Stals has indicated to you.
5 | Adv T Madonsela : Alright. Okay, Bankorp, but...
6  Drjjde ]ager Is can we just ... maybe that last part...
7 | Adv T Madonsela : Okay, let’s find out, when was Bankorp acquired by Absa?
8 | Dr]jde Jager Maybe we must just give you clarity on this last one.
‘49 Adv L Tshiwalule : In 1992 and then in ... this loan kicked in in 1995. That is the
10 evidence we have, that it kicked in in 1995 ...
11 | DrCStals Yeaﬁ, that is right.
12 Adv I Tshiwalule : ..and then it had to be repaid as if it was entered into in 1992, That
13 was the agreement, but the information we have received is that in
14 1995 Absa couldn’t pay back that loan. Then what then happenea is
15 that there was then an égreement that was entered, which says that
these ‘bonds now has to mature, the first one, which is the first
tranche, which is 150 of the bonds.
18 | Adv T Madonsela : But be careful about where you are reading from. Are you reading
19 from CIEX? | |
20 | AdvL Tshiwalule : No, this is not coming from CIEX. Isitan international paper.
21 | Adv T Madonsela :- Butlet's leave that.
22 | Adv L Tshiwalule : | Okay.
23 | Adv T Madonsela : Ithinklet’s..Ithink whatyou have clarified, Absa has indicated to us
24 they were never part of the Loan Agreement, thaf wh;tever
25
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Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr]] de Jager

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr]J de Jager

Adv T Madonsela :

Reserve Bank. They bought an asset, they assumed that the asset
was clean and they thought all they had te do ... then the CIEX Report
has always argued that Absa knew there was a loan and Absa
continued to get interest on this loan.

It could be.

Now your evidence now-is suggesting that actually Absa did know

about this loan and Absa was a party to an extension of it when it

came to the party in 1992. For me in my head it changes the picture
in terms of the arguments that have been presented by Absa and

Government, and your evidence today.

: You seg, the ...

Because then you are saying the final ... sorry Sir, The final party that

- should 'have paid the-loan from your understanding was not

Bankorp, but Absa?
Yeah.

And that is not their evidence.

Ja, because that is the persons that held the bonds, presents the

bonds, Government repays the loan and that is given to the Reserve

- Bank.

For me that changes the picture drastically fof' Absa, because they
have always argued that those were deals, they just paid good value
for money. There was never an arrangement that they would ever
pay anyfhing and that contradicts what the CIEX guy says, who says
they have made an arrangement for it. Now you said actually they

paid the money. Not only did they make an arrangement, they paid
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1 the money. Now we need to just find evidence the money was paid.
2  DrCStals The bonds.
3 | DrJjdeJager That is the bonds.
4 | Adv T Madonsela : No, that they sold the bonds and paid back the money to the Reserve
5 Bank.
"6 | Dr]JjdeJager But remember there is one thing that you must. just remember, that
7 the maturity of the bonds - maturity being the date on which the
8 money needs to be repaid by the main debtor - the maturity of the
“79 bonds didn’t always specifically, precisely meet or match the term of
10 the Joan. So in the end when it came to the last part of the thing, as
i1 Dr Stals has given evidence, the bonds paid out, so they matured,
12 Government-paid the money over to Absa and then Absa said, “But
- 13 what must we do now? Must we now” ... because now again we
14 didn't have security now remember, because the bonds had 'béen
15 1“epaidT So they asked, “What must we do now? Must we now re-buy
16 new bonds?”. The Reserve Bank’s arrangement then was, “No, give
7 "1j us the money” ...
18 | Adv T Madonsela : Extend (indistinct).
19 | DrJj deJager .. “Give us the money, we will keep it on account -with us ‘and we will
20 | pay exactly the same interest that you earned on the bonds, so you
21 don’t have to buy the bonds again”.
22 | Adv T Madonsela : “But still the capital arrangement was still standing”, as he said?
23 | Dr]j de Jager Yes, and it was paid.
24 | Adv T Madonsela : And it was still repayable and his evidence is that it was eventually
25 paid?
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Mr C Moeraitis

Adv T Madonsela :

Mr C Moraitis

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Dr j] de Jager

Adv T Madonsela :

Mr C Moraitis

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Repaid.

Whether it was paid in a lump sum or it was paid in little trenches,
but the evidence that is on the table is that the money was paid,
because I'm saying if we get evidence that it was paid, case closed.” -
So that is what | want to get to. Can we ...

Can I'just.. you will get a copy of this document, that was agreement
between the Reserve Bank and Absa.

Yes,

It says very clearly - they agreed on a certain date - that the price of
the Government bonds that was paid ... but in any Lcase the major
transaction took place, if I have it right here, on 1 June 1995.

Okay, Sir aﬁd that was ...

The repayment was made by Absa to the Reserve-Bank.-

So you say Absa made the repayment ... |

So you Wﬁl find in this agreement between the Reserve Bank and
Absa;-and if you want to check it, you can go to the books of the
Reserve.Baﬁk and say, “What happened oﬁ 1 June 19957".

See if you see a huge amount on ...

Alright.” Okay, here this is the agreement, butrit is nét the actual
payment, Sir. |

0Oh, you want the journal entry? You are looking for the journal
entry?
Yeah.
Yes, because you are saying this was when the agreement was

signed?
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1 | DrC Stals [ mean you can go to the Reserve Bank with this agreement and say,
2 “You, the Reserve Bank, entered into this agreement with Absa” and
3 in there they said ...
4 | Adv'T Madonsela : Because that solves the whole problem.
5 | DrC Stals Yeah.
6 | AdvT Madonsela : Because Absa has always argued that they were never party to
7 anything, it never involved them,
8 | Mr C Moraitis That is the agreement (indistinct).
%\9 Adv T Madonsela : So I think then it is problem solved.
10 | DrCStals You see this agreement says one thousand one hundred million rand
11 and that is the value of the Government bonds.
12 | Adv T Madonsela : Yes,
13 | -DrCStals- And then plus the R400 million that the Reserve ‘Bank made_ an
14 advance to ...
15 | AdvT Madonsela : Okay.
16 | DrC Stals And it7is in £he agreement, here it is there, but all you have to go now
;: 7 .. is go to the Reserve Bank and say, “I just want confirmation of this
18 transaction, that it did take place”.
i9 | Adv T Madonsela : That is true. Thank you, Sir. [ think for us you have s-olved a big
20 problem, because we have asked all of these guyé to just give us the
21 - agreements, and then now you have given us the agreement and we
22 know who agreed with who. Then now the little stone that has to be
23 turned is the payment, is the transaction track.
24 | Mr C Moraitis Can I then make a copy of all these documents and I will have them
25 for you by tomorrow morning?
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Adv T Madonsela ;

Mr C Moraitis

Adv T Madonsela :

Mr C Moraitis

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :
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14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

23

24

25

Mr C Moraitis

Dr]Jj de Jager

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Mr B Dhlamini

Adv T Madonsela :

Brilliant.

And we will ask the Reserve Bank to give you the journal entries
from 1995 that you are looking for.

Yeah, that would really be helpful, or even if they just go ... zero in on
the exact transactions only. We don’t want everything, yes.

No, you don’t need everything. You just want the journal entries
from 1995, where Dr Stals has said the money was received back by
the Reserve Bank.

Yes.

You see I don't...

Because in that case you are right, then that the only thing you could
quarrel about was the interest, but that was the agreement then. So
that is the Davis then problem around whether the agreement Vitself
was ethical or not, but that was not our story. It was jﬁst like a
different story.

Don’tget Dr Stals started on that.

Yeah, but you are not worried about that. I mean the question is, was |

money paid or not repaid? That is the thing.

That is the thing, yeah.

It should be very easy to check this from the Réserve Bank. In this
final agreement this was for the repayment arrangement, it was a
third agreement. It says that Absa will invest money with the
Reserve Bank from 1 June 1995, that is the proceeds of the bonds.

Of the bonds.

Yes.
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1 | DrCStals It will invest the money at 16% per annum and this money will be
2 retained to repay the loan, as agreed in the original agreement and it
3 will be repayable on thé first working day of every month, as from 1
4 June 1995.
5 | AdvT Madonsela : Right
6 | DrCStals So you have all the details of that repayment in the agreement, but
7 sure, check it in the books of the Reserve Bank. It should be easy.
8 | AdvT Madonsela : Okay, I think from me that that would then be (indistinct).
Dr C Stals And it should add up to R1 500 millicn, the tota] amount of the loan
10 was repaid in that way.
11 | AdvT Madonsela : [twould have to.. 1?7
12 | Mr C Moraitis 1 billion, 500 million, R1 500 million. |
13 :| Mr B Dhlamini 1.5 billion.
14 | Dr CStals 1.5 billion, yeah.
15 | Adv T Madonsela : Okay, thank you, Sir.
Dr C Stals So you said ...
Adv T Madonsela : [don’t know if there is anything else we wanted to ask you. .
18 | DrCStals Then if I just can give you my last view on that interest that was
19 earned and that was the subsidy, the support. I think 3'zou have no -
20 legal status to try and reclaim that from anybody, "but
21 | Dr}]deJager - That is your opinion..
22 | AdvT Madonsela : Well Sir, I have heard your views on that.
23 | 'DrCStals So just finalise your report then.
24 | AdvT Madonsela : [ know that there is one judge who feels very strongly about that
25 arrangement, but as [ have sald we sit at the meeting, we listen to
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Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Mr C Moraitis

Adv T Madonsela :

Mr C Moraitis

Adv T Madonsela :

Mr C Moraitis

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela ;

Dr C Stals

everyone and__... but you have heen extremely helpful, Sir. 1 cannot

thank you enough for your ...

If yoﬁ need me again, call me.

... for your candidnéss, for your helpfulness and for your assistance

with documents, because we said ... we were accused in a court ... in

court papers, that we said we rely mostly oﬁ papers and then they

misunderstood us to _be saying that we don’t listen to people, but we
were saying that much as we listen to people, we prefer the

paperwork.

You want the facts.

We prefer the trail, you know the story as it happened.

You know I come from a long line of Gréek shopkeepers and as you

will often see in thé cafés, it says; “In God we trust, everybody else

pays cash”. So yours_is, “In you all we trust, but we want the

evidence”.

Absolutely. In fact that is what | was saying to my team actually a

few days ago, where nobody could understand what I'm saying, to |

say, “Yes, we have heard these stories, but can we have_ something |
can” .. |

Let’s give you the ] ournal entries and the agreexﬁén’cs.

Let me give you a last final joke. “In God we trust”, that is on the
bank notes of the Américan bank notes, “In God we trust.”

Oh, right. Ididn’t know that.

So the Governor of the Swiss Central Bank, not many years ago, when

al] these things happened in gold, he took one out in the IMF annual
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meeting and he looked at it, he said, “You know [ always thought it

97

keep that qﬁote? You said, “In God we trust”? | J

1
2 said, ‘In gold we trust”.
3 | Adv T Madonsela : Oh, “in gold”. Oh, my gosh they put an “L" there.
| 4 | DrCStals He said, “No, man, Ijustlooked at it last night énd I realised it said ‘I11"
5 God we trust”, he said, “But just as well, because tﬁe way youare |
6 running your economy in America you will need some help from
7 God”.
8 | Adv T Madonsela : Had they meant “In gold we trust”?
“’9 Dr C Moraitis No, no, “God”. They always meant it. He justread it as .. he thought
10 (indistinct).
11 | DrCStals He said he only made a joke you know.
12 | Adv T Madonsela : Yeah, he always thought it was “In gold we trust”
13 | Mr C Moraitis When we were on the gold standard you had to match your-assets to
14 gold.
15 | Adv T Madonsela : Oh yeah, before money, before the paper money was printed.
16 | Dr]J] de Jager No, i, when paper money was in.
Mr C Moraitis It is only when we came off the gold standard.
18 ! DrJj deJager You must remember if you go back in history you will find, not too
19 many years ago, on a piece of note you would see; “I prorﬁise to pay”.
20 There is a promise on that, that (indistinct) before“there was gold.
21 | Adv T Madonsela : Ohyes, that the money was still ...
22 | DrC Stals The world finally went off gold on 15% Mafch 1968 and [ was present
23 at that meeting in Washington. ?
24 | Adv T Madonséla . Thank you so much, Sir. I cannot thank you enough, but can I just
25
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Mr C Moraitis

Adv T Madonsela :

Mr C Moraitis

Adv T Madonsela :

Mr B Dhlamini

Adv T Madonsela :

Mr C Moraitis

Adv L Tshiwalule :

Adv T Madonsela :

Drj] ‘de Jager

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr J] de Jager

Mr C Moraitis

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr JJ de Jager

Adv T Madonsela :

Mr C Moraitis

“In God we trust, everybody else i)ays cash”.

“Everybody else” ... -

And in your case it is, “In God we trust, everybody else produces the
evidence”.

I like that.

We must use that as our quote in the feport

“Everybody else produces evidence”. Well, I think this is a good story
for the team. I mean I'm just thinking about the team,

You can have it, “In God we trust, but we prefer the facts from you”.
“We prefer the facts from you”.

Okay, thank you, Sir.

bkay, S0 wer will ... you will expect from us that we get something for
you that actually just confirms the péyment of these funds?

Yes, yes.

But I ... we may actually have to go into records and would yolu just

accept a record or would you accept something confirmed by a

_ Chartered Accountant, or by External Auditors or what would you

like?

The journal entry Johan, I think would support ...

It would help if it is a proper journal entry and not something that is

reproduced, because we would want something that is timeless, that
could not be ...

Yeah, that you can 'show it.

. said to have been produced (indistinct).

So you would have to ask your Accounts Department and they would
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1 have to go into the records to pull out the journal entries from June
2 1995, to reflect that ...
3 . AdvT Madonsela : Absolutely, or everything that happened then from' that stage
4 onwards, because it must say {irst month of the ... first day of the-
5 month from tﬁat journal. So we would then have to look at how
6 | many transactions did they make and startinglfrom there.
7 | Dr C Stals Yeah, that is ..
8 | Adv T Madonsela : Thankyou
Mr C Moraitis And you would have to tie the best evidence to Dr Stals.
10 Adv T Madonsela : Oh, thank you, Sir.
11 | AdvL Tshiwalule : [ would also really appreciate if you can forward me the infofmation
12 that I requeéted, so that we can also cite it in the report, or at least
- 13 some of the information that we consider in our (indistinct).
14 | Dr]j de Jager Yeah, I will ... you see the bonds I won't be able to give you, because
15 " the bonds would go back to who the original issuer were. | |
16 | AdvT Madonsela : Yes. -~
}?7 Dr C Stals Yeah and don't involve me in your disputes between you and the
18 Reserve Bank.
19 | Adv T Madonsela : So would Treasury have copies of these bonds?
20 | DrjjdeJager Yeah, they indicated ... |
21 | Adv T Madonsela :- Because they say have nothing, because-they claim everything was
22 done at (indistinct). |
23 | Dr]Jj de Jager You never know. You must remember how many do they issue in a
24 | year.
25 | Mr C Moraitis They issue billions and billions of them.
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DrJ] de Jager

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr J] de Jager

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

DrJ] de Jager

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Dr C Stals

Adv T Madonsela :

Yeah, they issue many. So you will have to have a sort of a sequence
where you can say these ...

The numbers. I think somewhere we have the batches and the Batch
numbers.

But you know that...

I can give you a logical answer. Once Government bond paper reach
maturity, it is useless paper.

Okay, so they would destroy those?

I can’t see why people anybody should keep it.

Yeah, you (indis_tinct] ;chat report.

Yeah, you give me an old cheque of yours, ] mean or even if you give

me a receipt of debt, or an acknowledgement of debt, once I have

- paid the debt and you have given that back to me, I throw it away- |-

you know because it is (indistinct). |

I can’t see why anybody would keep those pieces of paper for you.
Well, mmaybe for 5 years or something like that, but then it would go
through the incinerator or something.

[ think though the importance of the bond ... if_we will go with your
evidence; which we don’t know because ﬁe havé to weigh
everything, but if we go with your evidence, th'e importance of the
bonds themselves diminishes, because in your view they were paid
up front with the Joan from the bank.

Yeah, that is right.

So then their significance starts {indistinct), then it is the loan that we

(indistinct).
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1 | Mr C Moraitis You want io see that the Reserve Bank received its money back. That
2 is what you want to see.
3 | Adv T Madonsela : Thatis correct.
4 | DrJ] de Jager Look, if those bonds were not repaid ... if the bonds were repaid, the"
5 only beneficiaries will be Government, because they ...
6 | Mr C Moraitis It is Government, because they never repaid.
7 | DrCStals No, at maturity.
8 | Dr}] de Jager Yezh, at maturity, so because then Government was actually funded
:\39 for the 5 years ...
10 | Mr C Moraitis And nevef paid it back.
11 | Dr}j de Jager .. but never paid it back.
12 | Adv T Madonsela : Okay, we will look at that.
13 | DrCStals - Okay and that Loan Agreement, the last one of the three, between the
14 Reserve Bank and Absa_spelled but the details how the loans were
15 repaid. The bonds matured in a series, the money came in 'the
16 Reserve Bank, the loans were repaid, but fhat should be no problem
w:{ to get that from the books of the Reserve Bank.
18 | DrCStals Okay, thank you.
19 [Discussions amongst each other]
20 | Adv T Madonsela : You have been exceptionally, exceptionally helpfuf, thank you.
21 DrJ] de Jager R Thank you very much.
22 | AdvT Madonsela : Itis us who are grateful, absolutely.
23 [Discussions amongst each other]
24 [Go off record // End of Meeting]
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